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As students are aware that no books are separately released 
for Paper 6F Multidisciplinary Case Study, they are advised to 
refer the study material of the core subjects at the Final Level.

Standards/ Guidance Notes/ Legislative Amendments 
etc. applicable for above-mentioned core papers would 
also be applicable as it is to the Paper 6F Multidisciplinary 
Case Study. Students need to keep in mind that this paper 
involves application of all the core papers, thus conceptual 
understanding of each and every topic is required to look 
for the relevant topic from the reference material in the 
examination hall.

Students must also be aware that, from November, 2019 
examination, the competent authority has decided that the 
question paper of this subject would contain 5 case studies 
of 25 marks each, out of which student has to attempt any 
4. In each case study carrying 25 marks, MCQs would be for 
10 marks and descriptive questions involving computation/ 
analysis/ interpretation would be for 15 marks in the ratio of 
40:60 between MCQs and descriptive questions. Thus, while 
choosing which case studies to attempt, student may first go 
through all the case studies at one glance and then decide 
which of the four case studies out of five he/ she has prepared 
well with maximum topics coverage. Students must divide 
their four hours between four case studies to be answered 
meticulously. Once the case studies have been opted, give 
them a comprehensive reading while attempting the same. Try 
to note down the topics covered and then refer the same from 
the reference material. 

Some of the illustrative case studies have been provided below 
for practice purpose. Students are suggested to solve the same 
in examination condition and check for the answers only after 
attempting all the case studies.

CASE STUDY 1
Mr. Tinuraj, owner of M/s TR Textiles, is born and brought 
up in Uttar Pradesh, India. He has an experience of more 
than 35 years in textiles manufacturing industry through 
setting up his firm in 1984. Under his leadership M/s TR 
Textiles (the Firm) has achieved assorted growth in its textile 
business throughout India. The Firm is a prominent player in 
the leading textile conglomerates of the country possessing 
modern technologies with larger capacity, constituting 
everything from fibre to garments. Today, M/s TR Textiles is 
developing as an unified textile powerhouse, manufacturing 
yarns, fabrics, acrylic fiber and garments.

Due to the fact that the textile industry contributes significantly 
towards the growth of the economy via exports, Mr. Tinuraj, 

CA FINAL (NEW) - PAPER 6F - MULTIDISCIPLINARY CASE STUDY
for the past 10 years, is exporting premium quality yarns, 
dyed yarns in acrylic and a variety of production garments to 
Asia Pacific regions. Approximately 28 % of the total yarns 
produced is exported which has made M/s TR Textiles as one 
of the largest exporters of cotton yarn to some of the growing 
markets of Asia Pacific regions. 

To enhance the export business, Mr. Tinuraj used to travel 
various locations of the continent. For the past two years, he 
stayed out of India for about 600 days. During the current 
Financial Year also, he spent 300 days in travelling. His 
travelling session in days from Financial Year 2012 – 13 to 
Financial Year 2016 – 17 is given below:

Financial Year Number of days
2012 – 13 250
2013 – 14 250
2014 – 15 300
2015 – 16

490
2016 – 17

During the current Financial Year 2019 - 20, Mr. Tinuraj made 
a profit of R 20 crore from the business in Uttar Pradesh, India 
[including profit of R 15 crore made by exporting under Letter 
of Undertaking (LUT) to Bhutan of R 150 crore (the invoice 
for which is raised/ payments received in Indian currency)] 
along with profit of R 60 crore earned from business in 
Malaysia which Mr. Tinuraj controls from Uttar Pradesh. 
However, only R 10 crore out of profit earned from business in 
Malaysia, received in India through a credit in Bharat Bank of 
India, the bank account maintained by him in Banaras Branch, 
Uttar Pradesh. 

While his stay in China for 15 days out of total travelling of 
300 days in the current financial year 2019 - 20, Mr. Tinuraj 
received a major aggregate assignment of R 100 crore in Delhi, 
India through its marketing team (discussion was on R 125 
crore project, however could garb only R 100 crore project in 
the end). However, he could only manage to make profit of R 
18 crore through managing the entire business from China. 
This assignment includes a Government order for making 
uniforms for a commando unit which is exempted from GST 
under a special notification. The fabric used as raw material 
is exclusively procured for the exempt supply, but thread 
and lining material procured for the collars are also used 
for taxable supply. The turnover of the taxable supply and 
exempted uniforms is R 75 crore and R 25 crore respectively, 
the ITC on thread and lining material procured is R 1,00,000 
and R 3,00,000 respectively.  

Mr. Tinuraj used to make huge investments to intensify the 
scope of his business. From such investments he made major 
amount of income as follows:

Investments Income from Investments 
HK Development Bonds, 
Hong Kong

Interest of R 2 crore 
(out of which R 0.70 crore 
received in Bharat Bank of India)

Shares of Taj Tashu Steel 
Ltd., Bhutan

Dividend of R 1 crore received in 
Bhutan

Shares of Taj Raman 
Ltd., India

Dividend of R 0.50 crore

15 % Debentures of Taki 
Motors Ltd., India

Interest of R 3 crore 
(out of which R 0.50 received in 
Junshi Bank, Bhutan)

Paper 4:
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Economic Laws Paper 5:

Strategic Cost
Management and 

Performance Evaluation
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Direct Tax Laws 
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After so much of earnings and striving to earn more, Mr. 
Tinuraj wanted to budget his finances following the mantra 
‘Budget Your Money’. He wanted to protect the money from 
unwanted expenses and taxes. Knowing that this system of 
controlling cost includes preparation of budgets; co-ordinating 
the departments and establishing responsibilities; comparing 
actual performance with the budgeted and acting upon results 
to achieve maximum profitability, Mr. Tinuraj wanted to 
involve senior managers while preparing for budget. However, 
the managers do not want to get involved into such major task 
of budgetary control. Mr. Tinuraj explains his view-point that 
if managers do not get involved in the process, they may find 
the budget too challenging and therefore reduce their effort. 
That in turn would distort any evaluation. The participation 
of managers in setting targets for themselves tends to improve 
motivation and performance. Moreover, the budget is framed 
to act as a plan for the managers. The managers may therefore 
pursue this plan at the cost of other critical success factors 
that emerge in the internal or external environment of the 
firm. For example, a production manager may continue to use 
the planned materials mix even if the sales department are 
indicating that customers would desire a different product 
design and the purchasing department have accommodated 
their purchases accordingly. The production manager then 
has to choose between the plan and inter departmental 
coordination.

Mr. Tinuraj further explains that many of the conflicts arise 
due to the human nature of a budgetary control system. 
Managers may not always follow organisational goals, they 
may not always think long term, they may be cautious of 
moving away from the plan etc. This provides a conflict 
between many of the goals of a budgetary control system which 
needs to be considered at a strategic level when implementing 
such a system. Thus, it would be appropriate if managers 
take the ownership of their targets if they have been involved 
while preparing for it. For budget preparation in future with 
the managers participation, Mr. Tinuraj provided a budget 
prepared by him w.r.t. assignment received in Delhi (which he 
managed from China) for reference purpose as follows:

(In crore)

Particulars Budget Actual Variance

Sales/ Production (units) 12 10 (2)

Sales (R) 125 100 (25)

Less: Variable Cost (R) 76 62 14

Less: Fixed Costs (R) 19 20 (1)

Profit (R) 30 18 (12)

While preparing budget, total market size assumed was 24 
units, however it turned out to be 22.50 units later on.

The above budget outlay really helped out the managers while 
participating in the budget preparation process.

QUESTIONS
Part A- Multiple Choice Questions (2 Marks each)
1. Many of the conflicts arise due to the human nature of a 

budgetary control system. Managers may not always follow 
organisational goals, they may not always think long term, 
they may be cautious of moving away from the plan etc. 
This provides a conflict between many of the goals of a 
budgetary control system which needs to be considered 
at a strategic level when implementing such a system. 
Thus, involving managers while preparing for budget 
may overcome these conflicts. However, there are certain 

disadvantages too for such involvement. State which of 
the following may be considered as a disadvantage for 
involving managers in the budget preparation process.
(a) Managers may take the ownership of its target as their 

budget.
(b) Managers would not have an option of blaming 

unrealistic goals as an excuse for not achieving budget 
expectations.

(c) Managers may decide among themselves to adjust the 
proposed budget so that it is easier for them to attain the 
cost targets they have set.

(d) Managers may feel that they are being venerated for the 
value that their experience brings to the running of the 
business.

2. Market leadership is something that every entrepreneur 
strives to achieve. It is the position with largest market 
share for goods and/ or services. Same way, Mr. Tinuraj 
wanted to achieve this market share in Delhi. To help him 
understand his market share/ leadership in Delhi, calculate 
the Budgeted Market Share (in percentage) and Actual 
Market Share (in percentage), from the information given 
in the budget made for the purpose of Delhi assignment.
(a) 50% , 44%
(b)  50% , 42%
(c)  53% , 44%
(d) 53% , 42%

3. A Planning Variance simply compares a revised standard 
to the original standard. From the information given in 
the budget made for the purpose of Delhi assignment, 
calculate the Sales Volume Contribution – Planning 
Variance (market size variance).
(a) R 3,06,00,000 F
(b) R 3,06,00,000 A
(c) R 4,08,00,000 F
(d) R 4,08,00,000 A

4. The aggregate assignment of R 100 crore in Delhi, India 
includes a government order for making uniforms for a 
commando unit. Calculate the eligible Input Tax Credit 
available under this assignment.  
(a) R 5,00,000
(b) R 4,00,000
(c) R 3,00,000
(d) R 2,00,000

5. An Operational Variance simply compares the actual 
results against the revised amount. It would be calculated 
after the planning variances have been established and are 
thus a realistic way of assessing performance. From the 
information given in the budget made for the purpose of 
Delhi assignment, calculate the Sales Volume Contribution 
– Operational Variance (market share variance).
(a) R 5,87,52,000 F
(b) R 5,87,52,000 A
(c) R 5,50,80,000 F
(d) R 5,50,80,000 A

Part B- Descriptive Questions
6. From the information given in the case study, determine 

the residential status of Mr. Tinuraj by stating the relevant 
provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 for the Assessment 
Year 2020 - 21. (5 Marks)

7. Compute the total income in the hands of Mr. Tinuraj for 
the A. Y. 2020 – 21 if he were a Resident and ordinarily 
resident or Resident but not ordinarily resident or Non-
resident considering the additional information as follows:
(i) Closing bank balance of Bharat Bank of India as R 60 

Lakh (including savings bank account interest of R 1.8 
Lakh)

(ii) Wedding Gift received from a friend in Bhutan R 0.45 
Lakh.   (6 Marks)

8. If a supply is exempted from tax according to relevant 
provisions of the CGST Act, 2017, the output suffers no 
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tax, however, the inputs and input services have suffered 
tax and since availment of tax credit on input side is not 
permitted, it becomes a cost for the supplier. Then there 
comes the concept of zero rating of supplies which aims to 
correct this anomaly. A ‘zero rated supply’ means export 
of goods/ services/ both; or supply of goods/ services/ 
both to a Special Economic Zone developer or a Special 
Economic Zone unit. 

 In the above context, Mr. Tinuraj is not sure about the 
treatment of supply/ sales to Bhutan as export under LUT 
or as local supply, for the purpose of claiming exemption 
from IGST, as the invoice has been raised/ payment 
received in Indian currency. Please guide. (4 Marks)

CASE STUDY 2
THE INDIAN AGRICULTURIST
Mr. Harnek Singh is an Indian resident who has been working 
in Agriculture and its allied activities for the past 30 years. 
As a Farmer, he has been a witness to the Green Revolution 
and the White Revolution in the Indian economy. Being not 
much educated, he gave all his life to the laborious work of 
Agriculture but always wanted his children  to study well 
and contribute towards the nation in their own ways as their 
father has been doing by playing the role of a Farmer - a 
Community that feeds the whole nation and without which 
the Indian Economy's growth may come at loggerheads. He 
himself is very much established in his farming activities and 
majorly produces Sugarcane along with other agricultural 
produce. His Wife Mrs. Singh is a homemaker and runs a 
Dairy Farm which she is running successfully for the past 
many years. His elder son Gopi, a Graduate, has established 
himself as an industrialist and successfully runs a Sugar Mill 
for which he procures Sugarcane majorly from his father's 
farm in addition to other Sugarcane growing Farmers. In 
the mill, he produces majorly Refined Sugar with Baggaese 
and Jaggery as the By-Products. Mr. Harnek Singh's younger 
son, Harpreet, was studying Agricultural and Allied Sciences 
in UK and has just returned to India 2 months ago to help 
his Family in their respective Businesses with the adoption 
of new techniques and quality developments he has learnt 
about during his Foreign studies. While studying abroad, he 
would usually study about taxes on Agriculture and the allied 
activities but was clueless about applicability   of various taxes 
on Agricultural & allied activities in India except for that 
he had heard that income from Agriculture is exempt from 
tax in India. He wants to help his family by expanding the 
respective businesses and giving them a Corporate set-up. He, 
himself had studied Liquor Sciences abroad and wants to set 
up a Wine Distillery here in his village where he would grow 
Grape vines, harvest them and then produce wine from them 
for sale in the national as well as Global market.  Having no 
knowledge of the Indian Accounting and Tax structure related 
to Agriculture, he approaches CA Arun Khemka who has his 
office in the city nearest to his village to discuss about the set-
up he has planned for his family as well as his Wine business. 
He wants to get a Preliminary knowledge of the Accounting 
and Taxation aspects related to these businesses so that he 
can employ all the required resources in the most rational and 
economical manner possible. His father, Mr. Harnek Singh, 
has had no experience ever with accounting or taxes, being an 
agriculturist, so it is only he and his elder brother who know 
about the basics. 

CA Arun Khemka, after a long discussion with Harpreet on 
understanding the current business set up of the Family and 
what Harpreet plans to do and how he plans to modify the 
current set up of such businesses assures him of the best 
services possible he can render. He tells him that the major 
aspects involved in this would be of Accounting, Income tax 
and GST and he would deliberate to him on some of the basic 

concepts applicable to these businesses relating to these fields 
and what would be required to be done at his end, is possible 
only after Harpreet has a genuine knowledge of these subjects. 
He tells him that he will be able to deliver quality services to 
Harpreet as a Client only if the latter can provide him with all 
the requisite facilities, knowledge and working of the Family 
business.

ACCOUNTING ASPECTS IN AGRICULTURE
CA Arun tells Harpreet that Agricultural Accounting was 
never an issue in India till now and there were no special rules 
relating to it as it was completely voluntary but now since 
he plans to expand and modernise his Father's agriculture 
activities, he must know about the Indian Accounting 
Standard 41 known as the IndAS 41 on AGRICULTURE.

IndAS 41, Agriculture is the first standard that specifically 
covers the accounting and reporting requirements for 
the primary sector. Prior to this standard, there were no 
established guidance on agriculture and allied industry. 
IndAS 41 Agriculture sets out the accounting for agricultural 
activity, the management of the transformation of biological 
assets (living plants and animals) into agricultural produce 
(harvested product of the entity's biological assets).

IndAS 41 addresses following key critical issues:

(a) When should a biological asset or agricultural produce be 
recognised on the Balance Sheet?

(b) At what value should a recognised biological asset or 
agricultural produce be measured?

(c) How should the differences in value of a recognised 
biological asset or agricultural produce be accounted for 
between two different reporting dates?

(d) What should be the key disclosures?

This Standard shall be applied to account for the biological 
assets; agricultural produce at the point of harvest; and 
government grants when they relate to agricultural activity, 
with its own exceptions listed in the Standard itself where it 
is not applicable. It also lays down the definitions of various 
important terms related to agriculture such as Agricultural 
Activity, Biological Asset, Biological transformation, 
Agricultural Produce, Harvest, Fair Value, Bearer Plant, etc.

Entities are required to recognise a biological asset or 
agricultural produce when, and only when, all of the following 
conditions are met:

(a) the entity controls the asset as a result of past events; 
Control over biological assets or agricultural produce may 
be evidenced by  legal ownership or rights to control, for 
example legal ownership of cattle and the branding or 
otherwise marking of the cattle on acquisition, birth, or 
weaning.

(b) it is probable that future economic benefits associated 
with the asset will flow to the entity; and Future economic 
benefits are expected to flow to the enterprise from its 
ownership or control of the asset. The future benefits are 
normally assessed by measuring the significant physical 
attributes.

(c) the fair value or cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

DIRECT TAXATION - INCOME TAX ON 
AGRICULTURE

As per the Indian Income tax law, agricultural income is not 
to be included in the total income of the assessee. The reason 
for totally exempting agricultural income from the scope of 
central income- tax is that under the Constitution, the Central 
Government has no power to levy a tax on agricultural income. 
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The term “Agriculture” has not been defined in the Act. 
However, it is taken into consideration if a Person has both 
Agricultural and Business income more than the prescribed 
limits while calculating tax on the Business Income and this 
process is known as Partial Integration of agricultural Income 
with non- agricultural income.

“Agriculture” means tilling of the land, sowing of the seeds 
and similar operations. It involves basic operations and 
subsequent operations. However, the term ‘agriculture’ cannot 
be extended to all activities which have some distant relation 
to land like dairy farming, breeding and rearing of livestock, 
butter and cheese making and poultry farming. Agricultural 
income is exempt, whether it is received by the tiller or the 
landlord. However, non-agricultural income does not become 
agricultural merely on account of its indirect connection with 
the land.

Agricultural income may arise in any one of the following three 
ways:
(a) It may be rent or revenue derived from land situated in 

India and used for agricultural purposes.
(b) It may be income derived from such land by agriculture 

or the performance of a process ordinarily employed by a 
cultivator or receiver of rent in kind to render the produce 
fit to be taken to the market or the sale of such agricultural 
produce in the market.

(c) Lastly, agricultural income may be derived from any farm 
building required for agricultural operations.

Sometimes, to make the agricultural produce a saleable 
commodity, it becomes necessary to perform some kind 
of process on the produce. The income from the process 
employed to render the produce fit to be taken to the 
market would be agricultural income. The ordinary process 
employed to render the produce fit to be taken to market 
includes thrashing, winnowing, cleaning, drying, crushing 
etc. However, if marketing process is performed on a produce 
which can be sold in its raw form, income derived therefrom 
is partly agricultural income and partly business income 
like in the case of Rubber, Tea , Coffee or Sugarcane where 
if these are subjected to manufacturing process and the 
manufactured product is sold, the profit on such sale will 
consist of agricultural income as well as business income. 
That portion of the profit representing agricultural income 
will be exempted. Rules 7, 7A, 7B & 8 of Income-tax Rules, 
1962 provides the basis of apportionment of income between 
agricultural income and business income. 

For Example - Rule 7: Where income is  partially agricultural 
income and partially income chargeable to  income-tax as 
business income, the market value of any agricultural produce 
which has been  raised by  the assessee or received by him 
as  rent in  kind and which has been  utilised as  raw material 
in such business or the sale receipts of which are included in 
the accounts of the  business shall be deducted. No further 
deduction shall be made in respect of any expenditure incurred 
by the assessee as a cultivator or receiver of rent in kind.

Determination of market value - There are two possibilities 
here:
(a) The agricultural produce is capable of being sold in the 

market either in its raw stage or after application of any 
ordinary process to make it fit to be taken to the market. 
In such     a case, the value calculated at the average price 
at which it has been so sold during the relevant previous 
year will be the market value.

(b) It is possible that the agricultural produce is not capable 
of being ordinarily sold in the market in its raw form or 
after application of any ordinary process. In such case, the 

market value will be the total of the following: 
o The expenses of cultivation;
o The land revenue or rent paid for the area in which it 

was grown; and
o Such amount as the Assessing Officer finds having 

regard to the circumstances in each case to represent 
at reasonable profit.

POSITION AS PER GOODS & SERVICE TAX

The Following Agriculture related services are exempt from 
the payment of GST via the Entries mentioned therein:

Entry No. Description of services
24 Services by way of loading, unloading, packing, 

storage or warehousing of rice.
24A Services by way of warehousing of minor forest 

produce.
53A Services by way of fumigation in a warehouse of 

agricultural produce.
54 Services relating to cultivation of plants and 

rearing of all life forms of animals, except some, 
for food, fibre, fuel, raw material or other similar 
products or agricultural produce by way of—
(a) agricultural operations directly related to 

production of any agricultural produce 
including cultivation, harvesting, threshing, 
plant protection or testing;

(b) supply of farm labour;
(c) processes carried out at an agricultural 

farm which do not  alter  the  essential 
characteristics of agricultural produce but 
make it only marketable for the primary 
market;

(d) renting or leasing of agro machinery or vacant 
land with or without a structure incidental to 
its use;

(e) loading, unloading, packing, storage or 
warehousing of agricultural produce;

(f ) agricultural extension services;
(g) services by any Agricultural Produce 

Marketing Committee or Board or services 
provided by a commission agent for sale or 
purchase of agricultural produce.

(h) services by way of fumigation in a warehouse 
of agricultural produce.

55 Carrying out an intermediate production process 
as job work in relation to cultivation of plants and 
rearing of all life forms of animals, except some, 
for food, fibre, fuel, raw material or other similar 
products or agricultural produce.

With a long and productive discussion on all these aspects 
of Agricultural Accounting & its Taxation, Harpreet started 
with the work of modernising the respective businesses of his 
Family and set up his own Wine distillery in the village after 
following all licensing and procedural compliances. 

QUESTIONS
Part A- Multiple Choice Questions (2 Marks each)
1. Harpreet grows grape vines, harvests the grapes & 

produces wine. Select the most appropriate option stating 
the IndAS applicability as per the respective activities 
covered above.

4
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(a) Growing (IndAS 16); Harvesting (IndAS 41); Wine 

Production (IndAS 2).
(b) Growing (IndAS 41); Harvesting (IndAS 16); Wine 

Production (IndAS 2).
(c) All are covered under IndAS 41.
(d) Growing & Harvesting (IndAS 41) & Wine Production 

(IndAS 2).
2. The term ‘Agricultural produce’ includes any produce out 

of rearing of all life forms of animals, except the rearing of 
_______ for food, fibre, fuel, raw-material or other similar 
products under the GST law.
(a) Fish.
(b)  Silkworms.
(c)  Sheep.
(d) Horses.

3. Which of the following processes that make the 
agricultural produce marketable are not covered under 
GST Exemption?
(a) Harvesting.
(b) Packing for Primary Market.
(c) Packing for Retail Market.
(d) Fumigating & Curing.

4. The application of Scientific research and knowledge to 
agricultural practice through farmer education or training 
is known as-  
(a) Kissan Jagao Muhim.
(b) Agricultural Extension Services.
(c) Notified Agricultural Scientific Research Services.
(d) Agricultural Development Services.

5. The GST exempts loading, Packing & warehousing of 
certain agricultural products. However, such exemption is 
not available in the case of-
(a) Green tea leaves.
(b) Potatoes.
(c) Jaggery.
(d) Whole Pulse Grains.

Part B- Descriptive Questions
6. (a)  “IndAS 41 applies to agricultural produce, which 

is the harvested product of the entity’s biological 
assets, only at the point of harvest”. State the 
exceptional circumstances as mentioned in the 
IndAS on which IndAS 41 doesn’t apply.  (4 Marks)

 (b)  State with reasons whether the following statements 
are correct/incorrect:
(i)  Income arising to Mr. Harnek Singh from 

transfer of Agricultural land situated in urban 
area is agricultural income.

(ii)  X was the managing agent of Gopi's Sugar Mill. 
He was entitled for a commission at the rate 
of 10% p.a. on the annual net profits of the 
company. A part of the company’s income was 
agricultural income from the sale of sugarcane 
grown by the Company in its fields and sold 
further. X claimed that since his remuneration 
was calculated with reference to income of 
the company, part of which was agricultural 
income, such part of the commission as was 
proportionate to the agricultural income was 
exempt from income tax.

(iii) Mrs. Singh owned 100 acres of agricultural land, 
a part of which was used as pasture for cows. 
The lands were purely maintained for manuring 
and other purposes connected with agriculture 
and only the surplus milk after satisfying her 

family's needs was sold. The question arose 
whether income from such sale of milk was 
agricultural income in the hands of Mrs. Singh?

(iv) Harpreet is a shareholder in certain tea 
companies, 60% of whose income was exempt 
from tax as agricultural income. He claimed 
that 60% of the dividend received by him on 
his shares in those companies was also exempt 
from tax as agricultural income.  (1 Mark x 4 = 
4 Marks)

7. Mrs. Singh, as seen in the above case is into Dairy Farming. 
She owns a dairy herd, of 3 years old cattle as at April 1, 2018 
with a fair value of R 13,750 and the no. of the cattle in the 
herd was 250. The fair value of 3 years cattle as at March 31, 
2019 was R 60 per cattle. The fair value of 4 years cattle as at 
March 31, 2019 is R 75 per cattle. Calculate the measurement 
of group of Cattle as the March 31, 2019 stating price & 
physical change separately.   (3 Marks)

8. Gopi grows sugarcane and uses the same for the purpose 
of manufacturing sugar in his factory. 30% of sugarcane 
produced is sold for R 10 lacs, and the cost of cultivation 
of such sugarcane is R 5 lacs. The cost of cultivation of 
the balance sugarcane (70%) is R 14 lacs and the market 
value of the same is R 22 lacs. After incurring R 1.5 lacs 
in the manufacturing process on the balance sugarcane, 
the sugar was sold for R 25 lacs. Compute Gopi's Business 
income and Agricultural income.  (4 Marks)

CASE STUDY 3
Background
VayuSanchar Limited is a leading telecommunications 
company of India headquartered in Delhi. The Company 
ranks among the top four network service providers. It offers 
2G, 3G and 4G wireless services under post-paid and pre-
paid connectivity, fixed line telephone services and mobile 
commerce. It operates more than 2,260 telecom towers across 
12 telecom circles.

The Company’s dream is to boost the lives of customers. Its 
passion is to win customers for life through an exceptional 
experience. During the current year, the company also 
launched Unified Payments Interface (UPI) enabled digital 
payments allowing payments to any bank account of different 
merchants through smartphones, to beat the rivalries. 
This bitter relationship between VayuSanchar Limited and 
HawaSanch Limited, Lucy Limited & Magadh Limited (the 
rivalries) in network service providers, has spilled over to the 
high-speed broadband to corporates segment, as all the four 
companies battle for monopoly in market share.

VayuSanchar Limited launched its hyper speed VS Fibre 
broadband service, matching the price of other network 
service providers. This plan comes with unlimited landline 
calls along with premium online membership to the latest 
movies released through VS Fibre Application (the App).

Employees’ Wellbeing
In addition to boosting the lives of its customers, the company 
also believe in looking after the wellbeing of its employees. 
For this, it has established a Code of Conduct, Human Rights 
Policies demonstrating its commitment towards protection of 
Human Rights. In addition to this, the company has set up 
Internal Complaint Committee, to prevent sexual harassment 
at workplace, comprising a Presiding Officer who is a senior 
level woman employee, two employees who are committed 
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to the cause of women having experience in social work 
along with legal knowledge, one independent member from 
outside the organization who expertise in dealing with such 
matters. All the members need to hold office for a period not 
exceeding three years from the date of nomination as member. 
The Committee is responsible for dealing with all matters 
related to the subject.

Besides having an Internal Complaint Committee, company 
went through an intermittent vacancy of the woman director 
on 19th June, 2018, the vacancy of which was filled on 18th 
September, 2018 by the Board, though, the immediate Board 
meeting held on 18th August, 2018. 

Accounting and Auditing Perception
The Balance Sheet of VayuSanchar Limited as at 31st March 
is given below:

ASSETS 2019
Amount (R)

2018
Amount (R)

Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and 
Equipment

8,44,00,000 7,17,40,000

Other Non-Current 
Assets

3,92,00,000 2,79,40,000

Current Assets
Financial Assets:

Investments 1,95,00,000 2,12,00,000
Cash and Cash 
Equivalents

74,00,000 1,44,60,000

Trade Receivables 1,35,00,000 1,26,60,000
Total 16,40,00,000 14,80,00,000

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Equity Share Capital 4,30,00,000 4,30,00,000
Other Equity:

Reserve and Surplus 3,56,00,000 2,25,00,000
Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities:
Long Term Borrowings 2,25,00,000 3,90,00,000
Current Liabilities:

Financial Liabilities
Trade Payables 2,55,00,000 1,70,00,000
Payables for Expenses 2,24,00,000 1,49,00,000

Other Current Liabilities 1,50,00,000 1,16,00,000
Total 16,40,00,000 14,80,00,000

Other information: The company made a net profit after tax 
of R 1,40,00,000 during the current year and paid interim 
dividend of R 9,00,000. The value of Property, Plant and 
Equipment have been arrived after deducting R 15,00,000 
on account of depreciation. However, the company also sold 
one of its Property, Plant and Equipment for R 9,00,000, the 
carrying amount of which was R 8,00,000 at the end of the 
year 2019.

The company has the practice of releasing quarterly 
reports containing financial and operating highlights, key 
developments, results of operations, stock market highlights, 
ratio analysis, summarised financial statements, etc. These 
reports are submitted to the Delhi Stock Exchange, where 
it has listed security receipts, and are also hosted on the 
Company’s website. 

The 23rd Annual General Meeting of the company held on 8th 
August, 2019 at Sky Force Auditorium, Delhi where statutory 
auditor’s report were adopted.

The extracts of Independent Auditor’s Report to the 
members of VayuSanchar Limited for the Financial Year 
2018-19 along with Notes to the Individual Financial 
Statements and Annexures are given below:

Report on the Individual Financial Statements 
We have audited the Individual Financial Statements of 
VayuSanchar Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the 
balance sheet as at March 31, 2019, and the Statement of Profit 
& Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement 
of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for 
the year then ended, and Notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information.

Responsibilities of Management for the Individual 
Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the 
matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 
(“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Individual 
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial position, financial performance including other 
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity 
of the Company in accordance with the Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of 
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and 
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. In preparing the financial statements, 
management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Individual 
Financial Statements
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Individual 
Financial Statements based on our audit. In conducting our 
audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, 
the accounting and auditing standards and matters which 
are required to be included in the audit report under the 
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder and the 
Order issued under section 143(11) of the Act.

We conducted our audit of the Individual Financial Statements 
in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under 
section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the Individual Financial Statements are free from material 
misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the 
Individual Financial Statements. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including identifying and 
assessing the risks of material misstatement of the Individual 
Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. In 
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal 
financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting 
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. It 
further describes the auditor’s responsibilities to conclude on 
the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern 
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the entity’s 
ability to continue as a going concern.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Individual Financial Statements.

Opinion 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Individual 
Financial Statements give the information required by the Act 
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the Ind AS and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at March 31, 2019, its profit, total comprehensive 
income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year 
ended on that date.

Emphasis of Matter 
We draw attention to Note 18 to the Individual Financial 
Statements which describes the uncertainties related to the 
legal outcome of Department of Telecommunications demand 
with respect to one-time spectrum charges. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 
(“the Order”) issued by the Central Government in terms 
of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure C” a 
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of 
the Order, to the extent applicable.

Notes to Individual Financial Statements stated as follows:

18. On February 9, 2014, Department of Telecom issued a demand 
for R 24,00,000 towards levy of one-time spectrum charge. The 
demand includes a prospective charge of R 20,00,000 for GSM 
spectrum held beyond 3.5 MHz for the period from February 1, 
2014, till the expiry of the initial terms of the respective licenses 
along with retrospective charge of R 4,00,000 for GSM spectrum 
held beyond 5.1 MHz for the period from February 1, 2010 to 
December 31, 2013. 

In view of the Company, said demand amounts to modification 
of financial terms of the licenses issued in the past. A petition 
being filed by the Company, the Hon’ble High Court of Delhi, 
vide its order dated February 28, 2014, has directed the 
Department of Telecom to respond and not to take any coercive 
action until the next date of hearing. The DoT has filed its reply 
and the matter is currently pending with the Hon’ble High Court 
of Delhi. 

25. Contingent Liabilities- Claims against the Company not 
acknowledged as debt
Customs Duty
During the current Financial Year, the custom authorities 
issued a demand notice for custom duty with regard to import 
of certain software on the basis of the fact that the software was 
preloaded in the hardware at the time of import. In response 
to that, the company filed an application to the Hon’ble 
Central Excise and Service Tax Appellate Tribunal (‘CESTAT’) 
opposing the demand of custom authorities, contending that 
such imports shall not be subject to custom duty as it is an 
operating software which is exempted from any custom duty. 
However, the CESTAT has passed an order in favour of the 
custom authorities. Consequently, the Company has filed an 
appeal with the Hon’ble Supreme Court against the CESTAT 
order, which is still unheard.

Annexure C to the Independent Auditor’s Report
(ii) As elucidated to us, the inventories, except for those lying 

with the third parties, were physically verified during the 
year by the Management at reasonable intervals and no 
material discrepancies were noticed. 

(iii) As elucidated to us, the Company has not granted any 
loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited 
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the 
register maintained under section 189 of the Companies 
Act, 2013.

(xi) In our opinion and as elucidated to us, the Company has 
paid managerial remuneration in accordance with the 
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 
197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013, 
except that the commission of R 34,570 to non-executive 
directors is in excess by R 18,200, basis the lower limits 
approved by the Shareholders of the Company.

QUESTIONS
Part A- Multiple Choice Questions (2 Marks each)
1. While reporting on Companies (Auditor’s Report) 

Order, 2016 (the Order) under the head Other Legal 
and Regulatory Requirements, the auditor included a 
statement on payment of managerial remuneration in 
accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by 
the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to 
the Companies Act, 2013. State whether the reporting is 
in accordance with the reporting requirement under the 
Order.
(a) Yes, the auditor has reported as per the reporting 

requirement which requires stating the amount 
involved in case of qualified answer.

(b) No, the auditor has not reported as per the reporting 
requirement which requires stating the steps taken by 
the company for securing refund of the same.

(c) No, the auditor has not reported as per the reporting 
requirement which requires stating the period of 
default upto the date of seeking Shareholders’ approval 
for which excess commission was paid.

(d) No, the auditor has not reported as per the reporting 
requirement which requires stating the compliance of 
section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013.

2. Every listed company shall appoint at least one woman 

7



 The Chartered Accountant Student   December 2019    13

  MDCS

director on the Board in compliance of the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 
2014. In the given case, the company went through an 
intermittent vacancy of the woman director, which was 
filled later on. State whether the appointment of another 
women director by the Board to fill the intermittent 
vacancy is valid.
(a) The intermittent vacancy of a woman director can 

only be filled by the shareholders not later than coming 
annual general meeting. Thus, the appointment is 
invalid.

(b) The intermittent vacancy of the woman director shall 
be filled by the Board. There is no such compliance for 
time limit. Thus, the appointment is valid.

(c) The intermittent vacancy of a woman director can only 
be filled by the Board not later than immediate next 
Board Meeting or two months from the date of such 
vacancy whichever is later. Thus, the appointment is 
invalid.

(d) The intermittent vacancy of a woman director can only 
be filled by the Board not later than immediate next 
Board Meeting or three months from the date of such 
vacancy whichever is later. Thus, the appointment is 
valid.

3. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has 
issued the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 (“LODR Regulations”). The objective of the LODR 
Regulations are streamlining and consolidating the 
provisions of various listing agreements in operation for 
different segments of the capital markets. State which 
of the following companies is not covered under LODR 
Regulation for the purpose of its compliances.
(a) VayuSanchar Limited which has established a Code of 

Conduct, Human Rights Policies towards protection 
of Human Rights. In addition to this, the company has 
also set up Internal Complaint Committee to prevent 
sexual harassment at workplace.

(b) HawaSanch Limited, a public company, which has a 
paid up capital of R 100 crore. 

(c) Lucy Limited which has a paid up capital of R 10 crore 
and listed non-convertible debt securities.

(d) Magadh Limited which has listed securitised debt 
instruments on a recognised stock exchange.

4. Regarding demand notice for custom duty from the 
custom authorities, state, whether the company needed to 
provide for the provision/ liability/ contingent liability in 
the books of VayuSanchar Limited.
(a) A provision is a present obligation of the entity arising 

from past events, the settlement of which is expected 
to result in an outflow from the entity of resources 
embodying economic benefits. Thus, provision 
shall be made in the financial statements, instead of 
showing it to the notes to financial statements.

(b) It is a liability of uncertain timing and amount, thus, 
the demand shall be recognised as a liability.

(c) It is a possible obligation that arises from past events 
and whose existence will be confirmed only by 
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 
uncertain future events not wholly within the control 
of the entity. Thus, the presentation as contingent 
liability under notes to financial statements is correct.

(d) It is a present obligation that arises from past events 
but is not recognised because (i) it is not probable 
that an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits will be required to settle the obligation or 
(ii) the amount of the obligation cannot be measured 
with sufficient reliability. Thus, the presentation as 
contingent liability under notes to financial statements 
is correct.

5. Referring the Independent Auditor’s Report to the 
members of VayuSanchar Limited, the auditor has included 
a section with the heading “Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the Audit of the Financial Statements.”. Elucidate, what 
shall not be stated under this section of the Auditor’s 
Report.
(a)  Auditor’s responsibilities for identifying and assessing 

the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements.

(b)  Auditor’s responsibilities for obtaining an 
understanding of internal control relevant to the audit 
in order to design audit procedures.

(c)  Auditor’s responsibilities for assessing the entity’s 
ability to continue as a going concern.

(d)  Auditor’s responsibilities for evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates.

Part B- Descriptive Questions
6. Referring the presentation made by the auditor regarding 

Emphasis of Matter paragraph in the Auditor’s Report, 
state the conditions for including such paragraph. Also give 
certain examples of cases where the auditor may consider 
necessary to include an Emphasis of Matter paragraph. 
Consequently, state, whether the reporting made by the 
auditor in the Auditor’s Report is in accordance with the 
relevant Standards on Auditing. (7 Marks)

7. Considering the Balance Sheet of VayuSanchar Limited 
and ‘Other information’ as provided along with the facts 
mentioned below, construct a statement of cash flows 
under indirect method.
(i) Income tax paid during the current year is R 30,00,000. 
(ii) Other Non-Current Assets and Current Liabilities do 

not contain any element of Financing and Investing 
Activities.     (8 Marks)

ANSWERS

CASE STUDY 1
Part A
1. (c) Managers may decide among themselves to adjust 

the proposed budget so that it is easier for them to attain 
the cost targets they have set.

 Reason: Besides having advantages of involving managers 
in budget preparation, there are disadvantages too where 
managers may alter the proposed budget so that it is easier 
for them to attain the cost targets they have set.

2. (a) 50% , 44%
 Reason: 

Budgeted Market Share (in %) = 12 crore units = 50%
24 crore units

Actual Market Share (in %)      = 10 crore units = 44%
22.50 crore units
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3 (b) R 3,06,00,000 A
 Reason: Calculation of Sales Volume Contribution – 

Planning Variance

Budgeted Market Share (in %) = 12 crore units = 50%
24 crore units

Budgeted Contribution  = R 125 crore – R 76 crore
            =R 49 crore

Average Budgeted       = R 49 crore        = R 4.08
Contribution                    12 crore units
(per unit)
Sales Volume Contribution – Planning Variance 
=     Budgeted Market Share (in %) x [Actual Industry 

Sales Quantity (in units) - Budgeted Industry Sales 
Quantity (in units)] x Average Budgeted Contribution 
(per unit)

=    50% x [22.50 crore units – 24 crore units] x R 4.08
=    R 3,06,00,000 A

4. (c) R 3,00,000
 Reason: Thread and lining material are inputs which 

are used for making taxable as well as exempt supplies. 
Therefore, credit on such items will be apportioned and 
credit attributable to exempt supplies will be reversed in 
terms of rule 42 of the CGST Rules.   

  Credit attributable to exempt supplies = Common credit x 
(Exempt turnover/ Total turnover)  

  Common credit = R 3,00,000 + R 1,00,000 = R 4,00,000
  Exempt turnover = R 25 crore 
  Total turnover = R 100 crore [R 25 crore + R 75 crore] 
 Credit attributable to exempt supplies = (R 25 crore /R 100 

crore) x R 4,00,000 = R 1,00,000.  
 Ineligible credit of R 1,00,000 will be reversed.  Credit of  

R 3,00,000 will be eligible credit.

5. (d) R 5,50,80,000 A
 Reason: Calculation of Sales Volume Contribution – 

Operational Variance

Actual Market Share (in %)  =          10 crore units   = 44%
         22.50 crore units

Budgeted Market Share (in %)   =          12 crore units   = 50%
                       24 crore units

Budgeted Contribution         =       R 125 crore – R 76 crore
                                   =       R 49 crore

Average Budgeted                  = R 49 crore        = R 4.08
Contribution (per unit)              12 crore units

Sales Volume Contribution – Operational Variance 
= [Actual Market Share (in %) - Budgeted Market Share 

(in %)] x Actual Industry Sales Quantity (in units) x 
Average Budgeted Contribution (per unit)

= (44% - 50%) x 22.50 crore units x R 4.08
= R 5,50,80,000 A

Part B
6. Determination of residential status of Mr. Tinuraj for 

the Assessment Year 2020 - 21
 Under section 6(1) of the Income Tax Act, 1961, an 

individual is said to be resident in India in any previous 

year, if he satisfies any one of the following conditions:
(i) He has been in India during the previous year for a total 

period of 182 days or more, or
(ii) He has been in India during the 4 years immediately 

preceding the previous year for a total period of 365 days 
or more and has been in India for at least 60 days in the 
previous year.

In the given case, period of stay of Mr. Tinuraj during the 
current Financial Year = 366 – 300 = 66 days. Thus, the first 
condition of staying in India during the previous year for a 
total period of 182 days or more is not met.

Calculation of period of stay during 4 preceding previous years:

Financial Year Number of days

2018 – 19 & 2017 – 18
[(365 days x 2 years) – 600 days]

130

2016 – 17 & 2015 – 16
[(365 days + 366 days) – 490 days]

241

Total 371

Mr. Tinuraj has been in India for a period more than 60 days 
during previous year 2018-19 and for a period of more than 
365 days during the 4 immediately preceding previous years. 
Therefore, since he satisfies one of the basic conditions under 
section 6(1), he is a resident for the assessment year 2020-21.
Further, a not-ordinarily resident person is one who satisfies 
any one of the conditions specified under section 6(6) of the 
Income Tax Act, 1961, i.e.,
(i) If such individual has been non-resident in India in any 

9 out of the 10 previous years preceding the relevant 
previous year, or 

(ii) If such individual has during the 7 previous years 
preceding the relevant previous year been in India for a 
period of 729 days or less.

Computation of period of stay during 7 preceding previous 
years:

Financial Year Number of days

2018-19
130

2017-18

2016-17
241

2015-16

2014-15 (365 days – 300 days) 65

2013-14 (365 days – 250 days) 115

2012-13 (365 days – 250 days) 115

Total 666

Since Mr. Tinuraj satisfies condition (ii) above of staying in 
India for a period of 729 days or less during the 7 previous 
years preceding the relevant previous year, he is a not-
ordinarily resident during the assessment year 2020-21.

Therefore, Mr. Tinuraj is a resident but not ordinarily resident 
during the previous year 2019-20 relevant to the assessment 
year 2020-21.
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7. Computation of total income in the hands of Mr. 
Tinuraj for the A. Y. 2020 – 21

Particulars Resident and 
ordinarily 

resident
(Rs.)

Resident but 
not ordinarily 

resident
(Rs.)

Non-
resident

(Rs.)

Profit from the 
business in Uttar 
Pradesh, India

20 crore 20 crore 20 crore

Profit from business 
in Malaysia which 
is controlled from 
Uttar Pradesh, out 
of which R 10 crore 
received in India

60 crore 60 crore 10 crore

Profit from 
business in Delhi 
but managed entire 
business from 
China

18 crore 18 crore 18 crore

Interest on HK 
Development 
Bonds, Hong Kong

2 crore 0.70 crore 0.70 
crore

Dividend on shares 
of Taj Tashu Steel 
Ltd., Bhutan

1 crore - -

Dividend on shares 
of Taj Raman Ltd., 
India [Exempted 
under section 
10(34)]

- - -

Interest on 
debentures of Taki 
Motors Ltd., India

3 crore 3 crore 3 crore

Interest on savings 
bank account in 
Bharat Bank of 
India

0.018 crore 0.018 crore 0.018 
crore

Gift on the occasion 
of wedding [not 
taxable]

- - -

Gross Total 
Income

104.018 crore 101.718 
crore

51.718 
crore

Less: Deduction 
under section 
80TTA [Interest 
on savings bank 
account subject to 
a maximum of R 
10,000]

.001 crore .001 crore .001 
crore

Total Income 104.017 crore 101.717 
crore

51.717 
crore

8. GST on Export to Bhutan: As per relevant RBI Master 
Circular, there is no restriction on invoicing of export 
contracts in Indian Rupees in terms of the Rules, 
Regulations, Notifications and Directions framed under 
the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999. 

 Further, it is also clarified that the acceptance of LUT 
for supplies of goods to Nepal or Bhutan or SEZ unit/

Developer will be permissible irrespective of whether 
the payments are made in Indian currency or convertible 
foreign exchange as long as they are in accordance with 
the applicable RBI guidelines.

 Consequently, export of goods to Nepal or Bhutan fulfils 
the condition of GST Law regarding taking goods out of 
India. Hence, export of goods to Nepal and Bhutan will be 
treated as zero rated and consequently will also qualify for 
all the benefits available to zero rated supplies under the 
GST regime.

 Thus, the sales made by Mr. Tinuraj to Bhutan will be 
treated as zero rated being export under LUT without 
payment of IGST.

CASE STUDY 2
Part A
1. (a) Growing (IndAS 16); Harvesting (IndAS 41); Wine 

Production (IndAS 2).
 Reason: The grape vines are bearer plants that continually 

generate crops of grapes which are covered by IndAS 16, 
Property, Plant and Equipment. When the entity harvests 
the grapes, their biological transformation ceases and 
they become agricultural produce covered by IndAS 41, 
Agriculture. Wine involves a lengthy maturation period. 
This process is similar to the conversion of raw materials 
to a finished product rather than biological transformation 
hence treated as inventory in accordance with IndAS 2, 
Inventories.

2. (d) Horses.
 Reason: ‘Services relating to cultivation of plants and 

rearing of all life forms of animals, except the rearing of 
horses, for food, fibre, fuel, raw material or other similar 
products’ under Entry 54 include activities like breeding 
of fish (pisciculture), rearing of silk worms (sericulture), 
cultivation of ornamental flowers (floriculture) and 
horticulture, forestry, etc.

3. (c) Packing for Retail Market.
 Reason: The processes of packaging in retail packs 

of agricultural products, which make the agricultural 
products marketable in retail market, would NOT be 
covered in this entry. Only such processes are covered in 
the relevant  entry of exemption which makes agricultural 
produce marketable in the primary market.

4. (b) Agricultural Extension Services
 Reason: Item (f ) of the entry exempts Agricultural 

extension services which mean application of scientific 
research and knowledge to agricultural practices through 
farmer education or training.

5. (c) Jaggery. 
 Reason: Products such as tea (i.e. black tea, 

white tea etc.), processed coffee beans or powder, pulses 
(dehusked or split), jaggery, processed spices, processed 
dry fruits, processed cashew nuts etc. fall outside the 
definition of agricultural produce and therefore the 
exemption from GST is not available to their loading, 
packing, warehousing etc. [Circular No. 16/16/2017 GST 
dated 15.11.2017].

Part B
6. (a)  IndAS 41 does not apply to:

(i) land related to agricultural activity: for example, 
the land on which the biological assets grow, 
regenerate and/or degenerate (IndAS 16 Property, 
Plant and Equipment and IndAS 40 Investment 
Property);
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(ii) bearer plants related to agricultural activity. 

Such bearer plants are covered within the scope 
of IndAS 16, Property, plant and Equipment. 
However, this Standard applies to the produce on 
those bearer plants.

(iii) government grants related to bearer plants (IndAS 
20 Accounting for Government Grants and 
Disclosure of Government Assistance).

(iv) intangible assets associated with the agricultural 
activity, for example licenses and rights are 
covered under IndAS 38 Intangible Assets.

(b) (i)  Incorrect.
 Reason: As per Explanation 1 to section 2(1A), the capital 

gains arising from the transfer of such urban agricultural 
land would not be treated as agricultural income under 
section 10 but will be taxable under section 45.

 (ii) Incorrect.
 Reason: Since, X received remuneration under a contract 

for personal service calculated on the amount of profits 
earned by the company, such remuneration does not 
constitute agricultural income.

 (iii) Incorrect.
 Reason: The regularity with which the sales of milk 

were effected and quantity of milk sold showed that Mrs. 
Singh carried on regular business of producing milk and 
selling it as a commercial proposition. Hence, it was not 
agricultural income.

 (iv) Incorrect.
 Reason: Dividend is derived from the investment made in 

the shares of the company and is hence, not an agricultural 
income.

7. Measurement of group of Cattle as the March 31, 2019
Particulars Amount (Rs.)

Fair value as at April 1, 2018 13,750

Increase due to Price change [250 x {60 - 
(13,750/250)}]

1,250

Increase due to Physical change [250 x {75-60}]   3,750

Fair value as at March 31, 20X9  18,750

8. Computation of Business income and Agricultural 
income

Particulars Business 
Income

Agricultural Income

(Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.)
Sale of Sugar
Business income
Sale Proceeds of sugar 25,00,000
Less: Market value of 
sugar (70%)

22,00,000

Less: Manufacturing exp. 1,50,000
1,50,000

Agricultural income
Market value of sugar 
(70%)

22,00,000

Less: Cost of cultivation 14,00,000 8,00,000

Sale of sugarcane
Agricultural Income
Sale proceeds of 
sugarcane (30%)

10,00,000

Less: Cost of cultivation 5,00,000
5,00,000

13,00,000

CASE STUDY 3
Part A
1. (b)  No, the auditor has not reported as per the reporting 

requirement which requires stating the steps taken 
by the company for securing refund of the same.

   Reason:  As per clause (xi) of Para 3 of CARO, 
2016, the auditor of a company has to report 
whether managerial remuneration has been paid or 
provided in accordance with the requisite approvals 
mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with 
Schedule V to the Companies Act? If not, state the 
amount involved and steps taken by the company for 
securing refund of the same.

2. (d)  The intermittent vacancy of a woman director can 
only be filled by the Board not later than immediate 
next Board Meeting or three months from the 
date of such vacancy whichever is later. Thus, the 
appointment is valid.

   Reason:  As per section 149(1) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment 
and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, the 
Board shall fill the vacancy by 18th August, 2018 
or by 18th September, 2018 (i.e. 3 months from the 
date of such vacancy) whichever is later. In the given 
case, it has been filled on 18th September, 2018, thus 
the appointment is valid.

3. (b)  HawaSanch Ltd., a public company, which has a paid 
up capital of R 100 crore.

   Reason: The LODR Regulations shall apply to the 
listed entity who has listed designated securities on 
recognised stock exchange.

4. (c)  It is a possible obligation that arises from past 
events and whose existence will be confirmed only 
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or 
more uncertain future events not wholly within 
the control of the entity. Thus, the presentation 
as contingent liability under notes to financial 
statements is correct.

   Reason: As per Ind AS 37, a contingent liability is 
a possible obligation that arises from past events 
and whose existence will be confirmed only by 
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 
uncertain future events not wholly within the control 
of the entity. In the given case, the appeal is pending 
before the court which is a possible obligation 
because the liability for payment arising or not is 
dependent on the outcome of court decision.

5. (c)   Auditor’s responsibilities for assessing the entity’s 
ability to continue as a going concern.

  Reason: As per SA 700, the auditor’s report shall 
include a section with a heading “Responsibilities 
of Management for the Financial Statements.”. 
This section of the auditor’s report shall describe 
management’s responsibility for assessing the 
entity’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Part B
6. SA 706 ‘Emphasis of Matter Paragraphs and Other Matter 

Paragraphs in the Independent Auditor’s Report’, provides 
that if the auditor considers it necessary to draw users’ 
attention to a matter presented or disclosed in the financial 
statements that, in the auditor’s judgment, is of such 
importance that it is fundamental to users’ understanding 
of the financial statements, the auditor shall include an 
Emphasis of Matter paragraph in the auditor’s report 
provided:
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(a)  The auditor would not be required to modify the 

opinion in accordance with SA 705 ‘Modifications to 
the Opinion in the Independent Auditor’s Report’ as a 
result of the matter; and 

(b) When SA 701 ‘Communicating Key Audit Matters in 
the Independent Auditor’s Report’ applies, the matter 
has not been determined to be a key audit matter to be 
communicated in the auditor’s report.

 Examples of circumstances where the auditor may 
consider it necessary to include an Emphasis of Matter 
paragraph are: 
(a) An uncertainty relating to the future outcome of 

exceptional litigation or regulatory action. 
(b) A significant subsequent event that occurs between 

the date of the financial statements and the date of the 
auditor’s report.

(c) Early application (where permitted) of a new 
accounting standard that has a material effect on the 
financial statements. 

(d) A major catastrophe that has had, or continues to 
have, a significant effect on the entity’s financial 
position.

 In the given case, the auditor has included a paragraph 
on Emphasis of Matter which describes the uncertainties 
related to the legal outcome of Department of 
Telecommunications demand with respect to one-
time spectrum charges. Further, the opinion is also not 
modified in respect of this matter. 

 Thus, all the conditions and circumstances have been 
considered by the auditor while including a paragraph on 
the Emphasis of Matter.

 Therefore, the reporting is in accordance with SA 706.

7. Statement of Cash Flows of VayuSanchar Limited
Particulars Amount (R) Amount (R)
Cash Flows from Operating 
Activities
Net Profit after Tax 1,40,00,000
Add: Income Tax Paid 30,00,000
Net Profit before Tax 1,70,00,000
Add: Depreciation 15,00,000
Less: Gain on Sale of Machine (1,00,000)

Particulars Amount (R) Amount (R)
1,84,00,000

Change in Operating Assets and 
Liabilities
Less: Increase in Other Non-Current 
Asset
(R 3,92,00,000 – R 2,79,40,000) 

(1,12,60,000)

Less: Increase in Trade Receivables
(R 1,35,00,000 - R 1,26,60,000) 

(8,40,000)

Add: Increase in Other Current 
Liabilities
(R 1,50,00,000 - R 1,16,00,000)

34,00,000

Add: Increase in Trade Payables
(R 2,55,00,000 - R 1,70,00,000)

85,00,000

Add: Increase in Payables for Expenses
(R 2,24,00,000 - R 1,49,00,000)

75,00,000

2,57,00,000
Less: Income Tax Paid (30,00,000)
Cash inflow from Operating 
Activities

2,27,00,000 2,27,00,000

Cash Flows from Investing 
Activities
Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 
during the year

9,00,000

Purchase of Property, Plant and 
Equipment during the year
[R 8,44,00,000 – (R 7,17,40,000 -  
R 15,00,000 - R 8,00,000)]

(1,49,60,000)

Sale of Investments
(R 2,12,00,000 - R 1,95,00,000)

17,00,000

Cash outflow from Investing 
Activities

(1,23,60,000) (1,23,60,000)

Cash Flows from Financing 
Activities
Interim Dividend paid (9,00,000)
Long Term Borrowings paid 
(R 3,90,00,000 - R 2,25,00,000)

(1,65,00,000)

Cash outflow from Financing 
Activities

(1,74,00,000) (1,74,00,000)

Net Cash outflow from all the 
Activities

(70,60,000)

Add: Opening Cash and Cash 
Equivalents

1,44,60,000

Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents 74,00,000
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CA FINAL (NEW) - PAPER 6F - MULTIDISCIPLINARY CASE STUDY

Paper 6F:
Multidisciplinary 

Case Study

Paper 1:
Financial 
Reporting

Paper 2:
Strategic 
Financial 

Management

Paper 3:
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Auditing and 
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Ethics

Paper 4:
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and Economic 
Laws

Paper 7:
Direct Tax 

Laws & 
International 

Taxation

Paper 8:
Indirect Tax 

Laws

Paper 5:
Strategic Cost 
Management 

and 
Performance 
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Students electing this Paper 6F Multidisciplinary Case Study are advised to refer the study material of the core subjects at the 
Final (New) level. Students need to keep in mind that this paper involves application of all the core papers, thus, conceptual 
understanding of each and every topic is required in detail to answer the questions in an efficient and effective manner.

Standards/ Guidance Notes/ Legislative Amendments etc. 
applicable for above-mentioned core papers would also 
be applicable as it is to the Paper 6F Multidisciplinary 

Case Study.

Two illustrative case studies have been provided below for 
practice purpose. Students are suggested to solve the same in 
examination condition and check for the answers only after 

attempting both the case studies.

The question paper of this subject would contain 5 case studies 
of 25 marks each, out of which student has to attempt any 4. 

In each case study carrying 25 marks, MCQs would be for 
10 marks and descriptive questions involving computation/ 
analysis/ interpretation would be for 15 marks in the ratio of 

40:60 between MCQs and descriptive questions.

Thus, while choosing which case studies to attempt, student 
may first go through all the case studies at one glance and then 

decide which of the four case studies out of five he/ she has 
prepared well with maximum topics coverage.

Students must divide their four hours between four case studies 
to be answered meticulously. Once the case studies have been 

opted, give them a comprehensive reading while attempting the 
same. Try to note down the topics covered and then refer the 

same from the reference material.

CASE STUDY 1
Shanaya Limited owns a Building A which is specifically used 
for the purpose of earning rentals and had been classified as 
‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ in the financial statements, 
before the applicability of financial reporting framework as per 
the principles of Indian accounting standards. The Company 
has not been using the building A or any of its facilities for its 
own use for a long time. The company is also exploring the 
opportunities to sell the building if it gets the reasonable amount 
in consideration.
Following information is relevant for the Building A for the year 
ending 31st March, 2020:
Building A was purchased 5 years ago at the cost of Rs. 10 crore 
and building life is estimated to be 20 years. The company follows 
straight line method for depreciation.
During the year, the company has invested in another Building B 
with the purpose to hold it for capital appreciation. The property 
was purchased on 1st April, 2019 at the cost of Rs. 2 crore. 
Expected life of the building is 40 years. As usual, the company 
follows straight line method of depreciation.
Further, during the year the company earned/incurred following 
direct operating expenditure relating to Building A and Building 
B, however the accountant instead of capitalising the same, has 
directly debited it to Profit and Loss:

Rental income from Building A = Rs. 75 lakhs
Rental income from Building B = Rs. 25 lakhs
Sales promotion expenses = Rs. 5 lakhs
Fees & Taxes = Rs. 1 lakhs
Ground rent = Rs. 2.5 lakhs
Repairs & Maintenance = Rs. 1.5 lakhs
Legal & Professional = Rs. 2 lakhs
Commission and brokerage = Rs. 1 lakhs

The company does not have any restrictions and contractual 
obligations against Property - A and B. For complying with the 
requirements of Ind AS, the management sought an independent 
report from the specialists so as to ascertain the fair value of 
Buildings A and B. The independent valuer has valued the fair 
value of property as per the valuation model recommended by 
International valuation standards committee. Fair value has been 
computed by the method by streamlining present value of future 
cash flows namely, discounted cash flow method.
The other key inputs for valuation are as follows:
The estimated rent per month per square feet for the period is 
expected to be in the range of Rs. 50 - Rs. 60. And it is further 
expected to grow at the rate of 10 percent per annum for each of 
3 years. The weighted discount rate used is 12% to 13%.
Assume that the fair value of properties based on discounted 
cash flow method is measured at Rs. 10.50 crores. The treatment 
of fair value of properties is to be given in the financials as per the 
requirements of Indian accounting standards.
One of the Shanaya Limited’s manufacturing units is situated at 
one of the remotest areas of India. Being the company, whose 
main objective is also concerned with the welfare of masses, it 
has been specifically told by the Government of India to take part 
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in initiatives such as ‘Swach Bharat Abhiyaan’. Its main objective 
would be to create awareness amongst the rural people to be 
more cautious towards cleanliness and thereby also constructing 
toilets and imparting training programs. With the passage of 
time, the costs are expected to be increased. The campaign would 
run for 4 years and the expected costs to be incurred by company 
from year to year are expected as follows:

Year 1 = Rs. 20 crore
Year 2 = Rs. 40 crore
Year 3 = Rs. 70 crore
Year 4 = Rs. 120 crore

The company has also received the grant of Rs. 35 crore from 
Government of India to compensate for the costs which it is 
going to incur over a period of 4 years.
Meanwhile assume that the financial statements have been 
prepared for the year ending March 2020; the auditor of Shanaya 
Limited has noted following observation in its audit report, said 
observation has been documented after discussions with ‘Those 
charged with governance’:
“The Holding Company also owns various immovable properties 
that have been let out to Group Companies/ third parties for varied 
lease periods. Ind AS 40 ‘Investment Property’ requires assets to 
be classified as Investment Property in case certain conditions 
are met. This involves significant judgment and estimation with 
respect to the lease term, management intention etc., basis which 
the assets are classified either as property, plant and equipment or 
investment property in the Balance sheet.”
Corresponding to above observation, issue has been addressed in 
the audit report by auditors as follows:
“We obtained an understanding of financial statement closure 
process, including the process of assessment and classification of 
immovable properties and preparation of relevant disclosures. We 
also understood design and implementation of controls, tested the 
operating effectiveness of these controls, including validation of 
management review controls.
We assessed various lease agreements entered into by with group 
Companies / third parties and evaluated terms of agreements, 
along with requirements of Ind AS.
We read the judgements and assumptions made by the management 
with respect to classification of investment properties.
We assessed the disclosure of investment property made in the 
consolidated Ind AS financial statements.”
Shanaya Limited’s turnover during the P.Y. 2017-18 and 2018-19 
was Rs. 500 crore and Rs. 600 crores respectively. The company’s 
turnover for the P.Y. 2019- 20 is Rs. 800 crores. Net profit as per 
the Statement of Profit and Loss Account for the previous year 
2019-20 is Rs. 500 crores. Details of the expenses debited to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss A/c for the year ended 31.3.2020:

Particulars Rs. (crores)
Depreciation as per the Companies Act, 2013 80.00
Interest on borrowings from banks not paid up to 
tax return filing

2.75

Provision for bad and doubtful debts 6.20
Corporate social responsibility expenses 2.50
Expenses incurred for services taken from 
Saurashtra Pvt. Ltd., a company registered in 
Maharashtra region, on which corresponding 
TDS under section 194C has not been deducted 

7.00

Bonus paid on April 30th,2020 3.00
Expenses incurred on voluntary retirement 
scheme 

2.40

During the previous year 2018-19, company has not deducted 
tax at source on the amount of expenditure of Rs. 15.73 crores 
incurred and paid to PQR Private Limited. Company has 
collectively deducted tax at source on the further payment made 
to PQR Limited and deposited the same to the credit of Central 
Government in the financial year 2019-20 along with interest.
Following information relates to Block of assets for financial year 
2019-20 as per Income-tax Act, 1961:

Block of 
assets

Written 
down value 

on the 
first day of 
previous 

year

Purchase 
of new 
asset

Date of 
purchase

Date of 
ready to 

use

Date of put 
to use

Land Nil 50 01/04/2019 - -

Plant and 
Machinery

480 Nil - - -

Office 
Building

200 75 08/02/2020 15/02/2020

Furniture 
and fittings

65 35 10/09/2019 13/09/2019 25/09/2019

Intangible 
assets

- 40 25/05/2019 25/05/2019 25/05/2019

The brought forward business loss as per Income-tax return for 
A.Y. 2019-20 is Rs. 35 crores and the company’s retained earnings 
balance for FY 2018-19 is Rs. 1,200 crores.
The company is doing well for some time as the company has 
witnessed rise in its revenue due to its aggressive marketing 
campaigns. Although the revenue has increased since past, but 
the debtors are also accumulating over a period of time. Most 
of its clients are related to Government sector which takes 
reasonably long period of time to get the payment cleared. The 
company is facing liquidity problems due to non-availability of 
cash; hence it has not been able to pay the statutory dues within 
the time. As a consequence, company filed the return of income 
on 31st December, 2020 and paid the due taxes accordingly.
The tax audit of the company started in the month of November 
2020 due to delay on the part of the management. It was finally 
signed by auditor on 20th January, 2021. It may be noted that 
the transfer pricing audit is not applicable to the company for 
assessment year 2020-2021.

QUESTIONS
Part A- Multiple Choice Questions 
1. What appropriate term of the following would be used for 

auditor’s observation on the analysis of issue regarding 
Investment property in the audit report as per relevant 
standard on auditing?
(a) Emphasis of matter
(b) Other matter
(c) Key audit matter
(d) Opinion Para

2. If Income tax provision at the year beginning was Rs. 150 
crores as per books and Income tax paid during the year is 
Rs. 126.09 crores, then the closing balance of Income tax 
provision as per books of accounts is:
(a) Rs. 129.20 crores
(b) Rs. 177.66 crores
(c) Rs. 102.45 crores
(d) Rs. 146.89 crores
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3. There are certain carve-outs and significant differences 
between IFRS and Ind AS. Which of the following 
statements is correct in reference to Ind AS 40 vis-à-vis- 
IAS 40?
(a) Ind AS 40 permits both cost model and fair value 

model for measurement of investments after initial 
recognition.

(b) IAS 40 permits only cost model for measurement of 
investments after initial recognition.

(c) Ind AS 40 permits only fair value model for 
measurement of investments after initial recognition.

(d) IAS 40 permits both cost model and fair value 
model for measurement of investments after initial 
recognition.

4. Calculate the amount, Shanaya Limited would recognise 
in its books of accounts in first year, for the grant received 
from Government of India amounting to Rs. 35 crores.
(a) Rs. 8.40 crores
(b) Rs. 8.75 crores
(c) Rs. 35 crores
(d) Rs. 2.80 crores

5. Whether Shanaya Limited is liable to pay any penalty for 
failure to furnish tax audit report  in accordance with the 
relevant provisions of Income-tax Act, 1961 and if yes, 
then what would be amount of penalty leviable?
(a) Yes, Shanaya Limited is liable to pay penalty of 

Rs. 1,50,000.
(b) Yes, Shanaya Limited it is liable to pay penalty of Rs. 4 

crores.
(c) Yes, Shanaya Limited is liable to pay penalty of Rs. 8 

crores.
(d) No, Shanaya Limited is not liable to pay penalty, since 

the company has filed the tax audit report before the 
end of relevant assessment year.

Part B- Descriptive Questions
6. What would be the treatment of Building A and Building B 

in the Balance Sheet of Shanaya Limited? Provide detailed 
disclosures and computations in line with relevant Indian 
accounting standards. Treat it as if you are preparing 
a separate note or schedule, of the given assets in the 
Balance Sheet.

7. Compute total income and tax liability of Shanaya Limited 
for the assessment year 2020-21, as per provisions of 
Income-tax Act, 1961. Ignore the provisions of Minimum 
Alternate Tax.

8. Compute the amount of advance tax payable along with 
due date for payment of instalments of advance tax during 
the previous year 2019-20 as per the provisions of Income-
tax Act, 1961.

CASE STUDY 2
Glaxosd Ltd. has dedicated an expenditure of Rs. 50 lakhs 
towards advertising of its products. They contacted advertising 
agencies such as McLeod to undertake the marketing of its 
products. They entered into a contractual arrangement for 

undertaking advertisement on TV, Hotstar and Netflix for 
FY 2019-2020. However, Mcleod did not charge any money 
to Glaxosd Ltd. as Glaxosd Ltd. has helped Mcleod during the 
recession in the year 2008. In order to show gratitude, McLeod 
did not bill them for advertising services rendered by them.
McLeod charges a sum of Rs. 25 lakhs for advertising on TV, 
Hotstar and Netflix to companies who are engaged in trading 
of goods for a year. McLeod generally charges a mark -up of 
40% on the cost.
Glaxosd Ltd. has a branch at Guwahati. It supplied 1,00,000 
pieces of garments to the branch on 17th January, 2020. Since 
it had supplied the goods to the branch, it did not charge any 
consideration from the branch. 
Guwahati branch sources its entire purchase from the Glaxosd 
Ltd. The branch in turn sells it to retail customers. The Branch 
sells the goods to the customers at a price of Rs. 15 per piece.
Glaxosd Ltd. issued an invoice of Rs. 1,50,000 plus 5 percent 
GST to a customer who bought 20,000 pieces on 15th May, 
2019. The goods sold to the customer were from the defect 
lot. On 20th May 2019, the rate of tax changed from 5 percent 
to 18 percent. The customer paid the company through a 
cheque dated 18th May, 2019. The funds got credited in the 
bank account on 25th May 2019. The customer got delivery of 
goods on 21st May, 2019.
Mr. Adrio works in Canada for Glaxosd Ltd. He earned salary 
of USD 10,000 per month. 
Mr. Adrio works exclusively to develop the market of the 
product which Glaxosd Ltd. trades in India.
He is deputed in Canada since January 2019. Glaxosd Ltd. 
has also deputed Mr. Ricky for assisting Mr. Adrio in all the 
administrative work of the Mr. Adrio. His salary is USD 100. 
Salary to the employee is due on last day of the month. Salary 
is paid on the due date only. The telegraphic transfer Buying 
rate is stated as under:

Date TT Buying Rate

31.10.2019 65.50

30.11.2019 69.45

31.12.2019 70.57

31.01.2020 72.58

29.02.2020 73.68

31.03.2020 74.69

Mr. Adrio has signed a contract with Glaxosd Ltd. for a period 
of 6 years. Glaxosd Ltd. has insisted Mr. Adrio to sign this 
agreement as the nature of services rendered by him are 
crucial for the company so that they can establish a market 
in Canada.
The Company got on board the brand “Jain Sweets” to manage 
the hunger needs of its employees from May 2019 onwards. 
The company distributed coupons to its entire staff worth Rs. 
200 each. Jain Sweets has variety of food items on its shelf: 
samosa, burger, sweets, farsan, sandwich, etc. The Company 
distributes the coupons on monthly basis. i.e. at the start of 
the month. The Company has 100 employees on its payroll.
The Company also received advance consideration worth Rs. 
10,00,000 on 16th August, 2019 from Jain Sweets in respect of 
the goods in which the company trades in. Jain Sweets wanted 
to buy such goods to distribute it in his village as a token of 
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love. The goods are to be delivered by end of February, 2020.
Glaxosd Ltd. requests the Commissioner of Police, Mumbai to 
provide security in and around the NESCO where exhibition 
will be held for 5 days from 17th January to 21st January, 2020. 
The Commissioner of Police arranges the required security 
for an agreed consideration of Rs. 10 lakhs. 
The son of the promoter of Glaxosd Ltd. wanted to enroll 
himself at IIM for a post graduate degree in business Analytics. 
Since, he is a CA Final student, IIM discussed the following 
details with him so that IIM could check his knowledge on 
GST. 
IIMs have designed following courses for FY 2019-2020:

Name of the Course Duration of 
the Course

Annual Fee

Post graduate in Business 
Analytics

2 years Rs. 2,50,000

Diploma Course in Data 
Science 

9 months Rs. 3,50,000

Masters in Business Planning 3 years Rs. 4,00,000

IIM also has canteen for its students and teachers and 
professors. It has in-house canteen for those students who take 
post graduate and Masters course in IIM. It has outsourced the 
catering services to “Jagdishan Foods” for students pursuing 
Diploma courses.
During the month of April, 2019, 20 students have enrolled for 
postgraduate course, 30 students have enrolled for Diploma 
course and 50 students for Masters course. The monthly 
billing of in-house canteen is Rs. 5,00,000 and the monthly 
billing of Jagdishan Foods is Rs. 2,00,000 for the month of 
April, 2019.

QUESTIONS
Part A- Multiple Choice Questions  
1. What is the amount of salary chargeable to tax in the 

hands of Mr. Adrio and Mr. Ricky? Assume that salary is 
chargeable to tax in India.
(a) Rs. 22,09,500 and Rs. 21,683
(b) Rs. 22,31,183 and Rs. 22,095
(c) Rs. 22,09,500 and Rs. 22,095
(d) Rs. 22,31,183 and Rs. 21,683

2. Would Mr. Adrio be eligible for gratuity from Glaxosd 
Ltd., on completion of his period of service?
(a) No, since he is rendering services outside India
(b) No, since he is only a contractual employee
(c) No, due to reasons mentioned in both (a) and (b) 

above
(d) Yes, he is entitled to gratuity from Glaxosd Ltd. since 

he would have rendered continuous service of not less 
than 5 years.

3.  What is the value of supply of goods sent by Glaxosd Ltd. 
to its branch?
(a) Rs. 13,50,000
(b) Rs. 15,00,000
(c) Rs. 7,50,000
(d) Rs. 11,55,000

4.  What is the time of supply in case of sale of goods by 
Glaxosd to a customer?
(a) 15th May, 2019
(b) 20th May, 2019
(c) 21st May, 2019
(d) 25th May, 2019

5.  Who will pay the GST on the services provided by Mumbai 
Police?
(a) Mumbai Police.
(b) Glaxosd Ltd.
(c) No liability to pay tax as services rendered by Mumbai 

Police are exempt.
(d) No liability to pay tax as services rendered by Mumbai 

Police are covered under zero rated supply.

Part B- Descriptive Questions
6. What is the value of supply rendered to Glaxosd Ltd. by 

McLeod?

7. When should Jain Sweets pay GST on the vouchers 
distributed to employees of Glaxosd Ltd. for the month of 
August 2019 and when should Glaxosd Ltd. pay GST on 
advance received by them from Jain Sweets?

8. What is the value of supply of service rendered by IIMs 
chargeable under the GST Act?

ANSWERS

CASE STUDY 1
Part A
1. (c) Key audit matter
 Reason: As per SA 701, ‘Communicating Key Audit 

Matters in the Independent Auditor’s Report’, Key audit 
matters are those matters that, in the auditor’s professional 
judgment, were of most significance in the audit of the 
financial statements of the current period. Key audit 
matters are selected from matters communicated with 
those charged with governance.

2. (b) Rs. 177.66 crores
 Reason:

 

Particulars Amount (Rs.)

Opening Provision of Income tax 150.00 crores

Provision made during the year 153.75 crores

Tax paid during the year (126.09 crores)

Closing Provision of Income tax 177.66 crores

3. (d) IAS 40 permits both cost model and fair value model 
for measurement of investments after initial recognition.

 Reason: This is due to difference between Ind AS 40 
and IAS 40 not resulting into carve out. IAS 40 permits 
both cost model and fair value model (except in some 
situations) for measurement of investment properties 
after initial recognition. Ind AS 40 permits only the cost 
model.
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4. (d) Rs. 2.80 crores
 Reason: As per Ind AS 20, Government grants shall be 

recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over 
the periods in which the entity recognises as expenses 
the related costs for which the grants are intended to 
compensate.

 Accordingly, Amount to be recognised in Year 1 = (20/250) 
x 35 = Rs. 2.80 crores

5. (a) Yes, Shanaya Limited is liable to pay penalty of Rs. 
1,50,000

 Reason: If a taxpayer who is required to obtain the tax 
audit report under section 44AB or to furnish auditor’s 
report with income tax return but if it fails to do so, then it 
is penalized accordingly. The defaulters of tax audit report 
are penalised under section 271B of Income-tax Act.

 Penalty is lower of Rs. 1,50,000 or 0.5% of total sales/
turnover (Rs. 4 crores in this case)

6. Investment property is held to earn rentals or for capital 
appreciation or both. Ind AS 40 shall be applied in the 
recognition, measurement and disclosure of investment 
property. An investment property shall be measured initially 
at its cost. After initial recognition, an entity shall measure all 
of its investment properties in accordance with Ind AS 16’s 
requirements for cost model.
The measurement and disclosure of Investment property as 
per Ind AS 40 in the Bal ance Sheet would be depicted as 
follows:

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES:
Particulars Period ended 

March 31st, 2020 
(Rs. In crores)

Gross Amount:
Opening balance (A) 10.00
Additions during the year (B) 2.00
Closing balance (C) = (A) + (B) 12.00
Depreciation:
Opening balance (D) 2.50
Depreciation during the year (E) (0.5 + 
0.05)

0.55

Closing balance (F) = (D) + (E) 3.05
Net balance (C) - (F) 8.95

The changes in the carrying value of investment properties for 
the year ended 31st March, 2020 are as follows:
Amount recognised in Profit and Loss with respect to 
Investment Properties

Particulars Period ending 
31st March,2019 

(Rs. In crores)
Rental income from investment properties 
(0.75 + 0.25)

1.00

Less: Direct operating expenses generating 
rental income (5+1+2.5+1.5+2+1)

(0.13)

Profit from investment properties before 
depreciation and indirect expenses

0.87

Less: Depreciation (0.55)
Profit from earnings from investment 
properties before indirect expenses

  0.32

Disclosure Note on Investment Properties acquired by the 
entity
The investment properties consist Property A and Property 
B. As at March 31st, 2020, the fair value of the properties is 
Rs. 10.50 crores. The valuation is performed by independent 
valuers, who are specialists in valuing investment properties. A 
valuation model as recommended by International Valuation 
Standards Committee has been applied. The Company 
considers factors like management intention, terms of rental 
agreements, area leased out, life of the assets etc. to determine 
classification of assets as investment properties.
The Company has no restrictions on the realisability of its 
investment properties and no contractual obligations to 
purchase, construct or develop investment properties or for 
repairs, maintenance and enhancements. 
Description of valuation techniques used and key inputs to 
valuation on investment properties:

Valuation 
technique

Significant 
unobservable inputs

Range 
(Weighted average)

D i s c o u n t e d 
cash flow 
(DCF) method

-Estimated rental value 
per sq. ft. per month

-Rs. 50 to Rs. 60

-Rent growth per 
annum

-10% every 3 years

-Discount rate -12% to 13%

7. Computation of Total Income and Tax Liability of 
Shanaya Limited for the Assessment year 2020-2021

Particulars Rs. in 
crores

Rs. in 
crores

Profit as per the Statement of Profit & Loss A/c
Add: Items debited but to be considered separately 
or to be disallowed

500.00

-   Depreciation as per the Companies Act, 2013 
[Disallowed, since depreciation as per Income-
tax Act is allowed]

80.00

-   Interest on borrowings from banks 
[Disallowed as per section 43B, since interest 
payable to banks not paid on or before the due 
date for filing return of income under section 
139(1)]

2.75

-   Provision for bad and doubtful debts
[Provision for doubtful debts is allowable as 
deduction under section 36(1)(viia) only in 
case of banks, public financial institutions, 
state financial corporations, state industrial 
investment corporations and non-banking 
financial corporations. Such provision is not 
allowable as deduction in the case of other 
person. Since the same has been debited to 
Statement of profit and loss, it has to be added 
back for computing business income]

6.20

-   Corporate social responsibility expenses 
[CSR expenditure incurred under the 
Companies Act, 2013 is not allowable as 
deduction by virtue of section 37(1)]

2.50

-   Expenses payable to Saurashtra Pvt. Ltd.
[30% of Rs. 7 lakhs, being payment to Saurahtra 
Pvt. Ltd., would have been disallowed under 
section 40(a)(ia) while computing the business 
income of A.Y.2019-20, since tax has not   been 
deducted during the previous year 2019-20]

2.10
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Particulars Rs. in 

crores
Rs. in 

crores
-  Expenses incurred on voluntary retirement
      scheme

[As per section 35DDA, where an Indian 
company incurs expenditure in connection with 
voluntary retirement, one-fifth of the amount so 
paid shall be deducted in computing the profits 
and gains of the business for that previous year, 
and the balance shall be deducted in equal 
installments for each of the four immediately 
succeeding previous years. Since whole amount 
debited to the profit and loss account, 4/5th 
would be added back] 

1.92 95.47

Less : Permissible expenditure and allowances
-  30% of the amount of Rs. 15.73 crores, being 
payment to PQR Limited was disallowed during 
the previous year 2018-19 due non-deduction of 
tax at source would be allowed during the current 
previous year, since TDS has been deducted and 
deposited this year.

4.72

- Depreciation as per Income-tax Act, 1961 115.75 120.47
Income from business or profession 475.00
Less: Brought forward business loss from the A.Y. 
2019-20

35.00

Gross Total Income 440.00
Less: Deduction under Chapter VI-A        Nil
Total Income 440.00
Tax @ 30% on the above total income (since the 
turnover exceeded Rs. 400 crore in the P.Y. 2017-
18)

132.00

Add: Surcharge @ 12% (since total income 
exceeds Rs. 10 crore)

  15.84

147.84
Add: Health and Education Cess @ 4%     5.91
Total Tax Liability 153.75

Working Note: Computation of Depreciation as per Income-
tax Act, 1961

Block of 
assets

Opening 
WDV 

(A)

Deprecia-
tion rate 

(B)

Additions 
(put to use 

for 180 
days or 

more) (C)

Additions 
(less than 
180 days) 

(D)

Total
(E) = (A) 

+ (C) 
+(D)

Deprecia-
tion
(F)

Land Nil - 50 - 50 -

Plant and 
Machinery

480 15% - - 480 72
(480 x 15%)

Office 
Building

200 10% - 75 275 23.75
[200 x 10% + 
75 x 5% (50% 

of 10%)]

Furniture 
and 
fittings

65 10% 35 - 100 10
(100 x 10%)

Intangible 
assets

- 25% 40 - 40 10
(40 x 25%)

TOTAL 745 125 75 945 115.75

CASE STUDY 2

Part A
1. (a) Rs. 22,09,500 and Rs. 21,683
 Reason: Since both the expatriates received their salaries 

in foreign currency.  In such cases, the salary denominated 
in foreign currency is to be converted to Indian rupees 
using the Telegraphic Transfer Buying Rate of such foreign 
currency as on the following dates: 

 — In case where tax is deducted at source by the employer: 
the date on which tax is required to be deducted at source 
i.e. at the time of payment of such salary 

 — In other cases: the last day of the month immediately 
preceding the month in which the salary is due or is paid 
in advance or in arrears. 

 Thus, salary of Mr. Adrio and Mr. Ricky is computed as 
under:

 

Date TT Buying 
Rate

Mr. Adrio 
Salary 

Mr. Ricky Salary 

31.10.2019 65.50

30.11.2019 69.45

31.12.2019 70.57

31.01.2020 72.58 7,25,800 =100*70.57=7,057

29.02.2020 73.68 7,36,800 =100*72.58=7,258

31.03.2020 74.69 7,46,900 =100*73.68=7,368

Total Rs. 22,09,500 Rs. 21,683

2. (d) Yes, he is entitled to gratuity from Glaxosd Ltd. since 
he would have rendered continuous service of not less 
than 5 years.

 Reason: Section 10(10) of Income-tax Act, 1961 dealing 
with gratuity is stated as under:

 “(ii) any gratuity received under the Payment of Gratuity 
Act, 1972 (39 of 1972), to the extent it does not exceed an 
amount calculated in accordance with the provisions of 
sub-sections (2) and (3) of section 4 of that Act;

8. Computation of advance tax liability and due date for 
payment of advance tax:

Particulars (Rs. in crores)

Total tax liability of the company for 
the assessment year 2020-21 payable as 
advance tax

153.75

Due date of 
installment

Advance tax 
payable till 

date (%)

Amount 
payable 

(Rs. in crore)

Net amount 
payable

On or before 
15.06.2019

15% 23.06 (153.75 
x 15%)

23.06

On or before 
15.09.2019

45% 69.18 (153.75 
x 45%)

46.13 (69.19 - 
23.06)

On or before 
15.12.2019

75% 115.31 
(153.75 x 

75%)

46.13 (115.31 - 
69.18)

On or before 
15.03.2020

100% 153.75 38.43 (153.75 
– 115.31)
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 (iii) any other gratuity received by an employee on his 
retirement or on his becoming incapacitated prior to 
such retirement or on termination of his employment, 
or any gratuity received by his widow, children or 
dependants on his death, to the extent it does not, 
in either case, exceed one-half month's salary for each 
year of completed service, calculated on the basis of the 
average salary for the ten months immediately preceding 
the month in which any such event occurs, subject to such 
limit as the Central Government may, by notification in 
the Official Gazette, specify in this behalf having regard to 
the limit applicable in this behalf to the employees of that 
Government :”

 As per Section 4 of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, 
gratuity shall be payable to an employee on the termination 
of his employment after he has rendered continuous 
service for not less than five years; 

 -- on his superannuation, or 
 --on his retirement or resignation, or 
 -- on his death or disablement due to accident or disease. 
 An expatriate who has already rendered five years of 

service reserves the right to claim gratuity from the Indian 
employer at the time of termination.

3.  (a) Rs. 13,50,000
 Reason: As per Rule 28 of CGST Rules, the methods of 

valuation of transactions between related persons and 
between distinct persons, in the sequence in which they 
are to be applied, are as follows:

 (a) the open market value of such supply;
 (b) if open market value is not available, the value of 

supply of goods or services of like kind and quality;
 (c) if value cannot be determined under the above 

methods, it must be worked out based on the cost of 
the supply plus 10% mark-up [Rule 30) or by other 
reasonable means, in that sequence [Rule 31].

If the goods are intended to be supplied as such by the 
recipient
Value = 90% of the price charged for the supply of goods 
of like kind and quality by the recipient to his unrelated 
customer.
However, it is not mandatory for the supplier to adopt 
this method of valuation. He can opt to value his goods 
in accordance with the valuation methods prescribed in 
clause (a), (b) or (c) above.
Thus, as per above Rule, no open market value of goods is 
available. The value of supply of goods or services of like 
kind and quality is not available as Glaxosd sold defect lot 
to its customer. The third option of cost plus mark-up also 
does not work out as no information is available. 
The branch sells the goods to the retail customers as 
it is , then the value shall be 90% of the price charged 
for the supply of goods of like kind and quality by the 
recipient to his unrelated customer=15 (price charged 
to retail customers by branch * 1,00,000 pieces * 90% = 
Rs. 13,50,000

4.  (d) 25th May, 2019
 Reason: As per Section 14 of CGST Act, the timing of 

two of the three markers (supply, invoice, payment) 
determines the time of supply. If any two of them occur 
before the change in rate of tax, the time of supply will 
fall in the period prior to change in rate of tax i.e., old rate 
will be applicable.  However, if any two of them occur after 
the change in rate of tax, the time of supply will fall in the 
period after the change in rate of tax i.e., new rate will be 
applicable.
Date of crediting of payment in bank account to be the 
“date of receipt of payment” if such crediting takes place 
after 4 working days of change in rate of tax
Thus, applying the above provision, 

 • Issuance of invoice happened on 15th May, 2019
 • Supply of goods -21st May, 2019
 • Receipt of payment: 25th May, 2019

The rate of tax changed on 20th May, 2019. Since two 
events i.e. supply of goods and receipt of payment took 
place after the date of change in tax rate, the time of supply 
will be the 25th May, 2019 i.e. after the date of change in 
tax rate.

5.  (b) Glaxosd Ltd.
 Reason: Services provided by Police or security agencies 

of Government to PSU/private business entities are not 
exempt from GST.
Such services are taxable supplies and the recipients are 
required to pay the tax under reverse charge mechanism 
on the amount of consideration paid to Government for 
such supply of services. In this case, services of providing 
security by the police personnel are not exempt. As the 
services are provided by Government, Glaxosd Ltd. 
is liable to pay the tax on the consideration paid, albeit 
under reverse charge mechanism.

Part B
6. Rule 29 of CGST Rules dealing with principal and agent is 
applicable for value of supply of goods between the principal 
and agent. However, Mcleod (agent) rendered services to 
Glaxosd Ltd. (being the principal).
Thus, the value of supply can be determined as per Rule 30 
or Rule 31.
As per Rule 30, If the value of a supply of goods and/or services 
cannot be worked out by the foregoing methods, its value will 
be 110% of the cost of production/ manufacture/ acquisition 
of such goods or cost of provision of such services
So, the value of supply as per Rule 30 is calculated as under:

Price charged by Mcleod Rs. 25,00,000

Cost of services =Selling Price/140*100 Rs. 17,85,714.3

As per Rule 30, value of supply =110% of cost Rs. 19,64,285.7

The value of supply as per Rule 31, the residual method 
consists of determination of value by using reasonable means 
consistent with the principles and general provisions of 
Section 15 and these Rules.
As per Rule 31 (diagrammatic representation of which is 
stated below), it shall be open market value in case of services 
rendered by Mcleod.)
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7. As per Section 12(4) of CGST Act, time of supply of 
vouchers exchangeable for goods and services is stated as 
under:
(a) Supply of goods is identifiable at the time of issue of 
voucher

   Date of issue of the voucher
(b) Other cases

   Date of redemption of the voucher
Since the supply of goods is not identifiable at the time of 
issue of voucher (as Jain Sweets sell various products), date of 
redemption of voucher is the time of supply. 
For the month of August, the tax needs to be paid by 20th 
September, 2019.
No GST on advances received for supply of goods: In case of 
supply of goods by a registered person (excluding composition 
supplier), GST is to be paid on the outward supply of goods on 
the date of issue of invoice or the last date on which invoice 
ought to have been issued in terms of section 31 [Notification 
No. 66/2017 CT dated 15.11.2017].
Thus, no GST shall be paid at the time of receipt of advance. 
Since goods will be delivered by end of February, invoice 
shall be issued by Glaxosd Ltd. in the month of February 
and GST shall be paid on or before 20th March, 2020.

8. IIMs provide various long duration programs (1 year or 
more) for which they award diploma/ degree certificate duly 
recommended by Board of Governors as per the power vested 
in them under the IIM Act, 2017. Therefore, it is clarified that 
services provided by Indian Institutes of Managements to 
their students- in all such long duration programs (one year or 

NO

NO

NO

NO

NO

NO

YES

YES

YES

YES

YES YES

YES
VALUE= NIL

NO

Taxable supply made between related 
persons and/or between distinct person

Whether the supply is of a service  provided by notified service 
providers between distinct persons without any consideration and 
ITC is available ?

Whether the supply is of goods 
intended to be sold as such by 
the recipient?

Whether the recipient is 
eligible for full ITC?

Is the open market value available?

Is the value of supplies of like kind and 
quality available?

Whether the cost of production/provision 
of supply is available?

Value to be computed as per reasonable means (Best 
Judgment Method)

Value= 110% of cost of production/
provision of supply

Value= Open market value

Value= Value of supplies of like kind and quality

Invoice value= Open market value

Whether the supplier has 
opted to value goods at 90% 
of the price of like goods sold 
by the recipient to unrelated 
customer?

Value= 90% of 
the price of like 
goods sold by 
the recipient 
to unrelated 
customer

more) are exempt from levy of GST. Thus, services rendered 
by providing post graduate and master courses are exempt.
IIMs also provide various short duration/ short term programs 
(less than 1 year) for which they award participation certificate 
to the executives/ professionals as they are considered as 
“participants” of the said programmes. These participation 
certificates are not any qualification recognized by law. Such 
participants are also not considered as students of IIMs. 
Services provided by IIMs as an educational institution to 
such participants are not exempt from GST. Such short 
duration executive programs attract standard rate of GST 
@ 18% (CGST 9% + SGST 9%) [Circular No. 82/01/2019 
GST dated 01.01.2019]. The services provided through 
Diploma course attracts GST, thus the value of services is 
Rs. 1,05,00,000.
If the catering service is one of the services provided by an 
educational institution to its students, faculty and staff and 
the said educational institution is covered by the definition 
of ‘educational institution’ as given above, then the same is 
exempt. Thus, the canteen services run by in-house team of 
IIMs are exempt.
If the catering services, i.e., supply of food or drink in a mess 
or canteen, are provided by anyone other than the educational 
institution, i.e. the institution outsources the catering activity 
to an outside contractor, then it is a supply of service to the 
concerned educational institution by such outside caterer and 
attracts GST. The billing of Rs. 2,00,000 from Jagdishan Foods 
is taxable under the Act.
Thus, the value of taxable supply by IIM is Rs. 1,05,00,000 and 
the value of taxable supply by Jagdishan Foods is Rs. 2,00,000.
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Students electing this Paper 6F Multidisciplinary Case Study are advised to refer the study material of the core subjects at the 
Final (New) level. Students need to keep in mind that this paper involves application of all the core papers, thus, conceptual 
understanding of each and every topic is required in detail to answer the questions in an efficient and effective manner.

Standards/ Guidance Notes/ Legislative Amendments etc. 
applicable for above-mentioned core papers would also 
be applicable as it is to the Paper 6F Multidisciplinary 

Case Study.

Two illustrative case studies have been provided below for 
practice purpose. Students are suggested to solve the same in 
examination condition and check for the answers only after 

attempting both the case studies.

The question paper of this subject would contain 5 case studies 
of 25 marks each, out of which student has to attempt any 4. 

In each case study carrying 25 marks, MCQs would be for 
10 marks and descriptive questions involving computation/ 
analysis/ interpretation would be for 15 marks in the ratio of 

40:60 between MCQs and descriptive questions.

Thus, while choosing which case studies to attempt, student 
may first go through all the case studies at one glance and then 

decide which of the four case studies out of five he/ she has 
prepared well with maximum topics coverage.

Students must divide their four hours between four case studies 
to be answered meticulously. Once the case studies have been 

opted, give them a comprehensive reading while attempting the 
same. Try to note down the topics covered and then refer the 

same from the reference material.

Shaurya Limited is the company having its registered and 
corporate office at New Delhi.  It is specialised in manufacturing 
machinery products and is looking to expand its operations across 
the nation. 60% of the Shaurya Limited’s shares are held by the 
Government of India and rest by other investors. The company is 
also in the process of negotiations with other companies to take 
over their business for strategic advantage.

Since the company has been in existence for more than 
10 years, the board resolution was passed to make political 
contributions amounting to Rs. 10,00,000 for the year ending 
March 31st, 2020. However, the average net profit of company 
for immediately preceding 3 years is Rs.8,00,000 only. The 
management of company is concerned regarding the maximum 
amount of political contributions to be made considering the 
relevant provisions of laws being in force.

Since the timeline to continue the audit for existing auditors 
has come to an end. So, at the meeting held of its Board of 
Directors, it was decided to unanimously appoint M/s ABC as 
the auditors of company for next five years.

This is the first time that Shaurya limited would be applying 
Ind AS for the preparation of its financials for the current financial 
year 2019-2020. Ind AS mandates that an entity shall present three 
Balance Sheets as at: (a) the end of the current period; (b) the end 
of the preceding period; and (c) the beginning of the preceding 
period, in its first-time adoption of Ind AS. During this process, the 
company is also required to present the opening Ind AS Balance 
Sheet as at the date of transition.  Accordingly, following is the 
Balance Sheet prepared as per earlier GAAP as at the beginning of 
the preceding period along with the additional information:

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2018
(All figures are in ’000, unless otherwise specified)

CASE STUDY 1

Particulars Amount (Rs.)
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Shareholders’ Funds

(a) Share Capital 10,00,000
(b) Reserves & Surplus 25,00,000

(2) Non-Current Liabilities
(a) Long Term Borrowings 4,50,000
(b) Long Term Provisions 3,50,000
(c) Deferred tax liabilities 3,50,000

(3) Current Liabilities
(a) Trade Payables 22,00,000
(b) Other Current Liabilities 4,50,000
(c) Short Term Provisions 12,00,000

TOTAL 85,00,000
ASSETS
(1) Non Current Assets

(a) Property, Plant & Equipment (net) 20,00,000
(b) Intangible assets 2,00,000
(c) Goodwill 1,00,000
(d) Non-current Investments 5,00,000
(e) Long Term Loans and Advances 1,50,000
(f ) Other Non Current Assets 2,00,000

(2) Current Assets
(a) Current Investments 18,00,000
(b) Inventories 12,50,000
(c) Trade Receivables 9,00,000
(d) Cash and Bank Balances 10,00,000
(e) Other Current Assets 4,00,000

TOTAL 85,00,000
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Additional Information:
• Other current liabilities include Rs. 3,90,000 liabilities to be 

paid in cash such as expense payable, salary payable etc. and 
Rs. 60,000 are statutory government dues.

• Long term loans and advances include Rs. 40,000 loan and the 
remaining amount consists Advance to staff of Rs. 1,10,000.

• Other non-current assets of Rs. 2,00,000 consists Capital 
advances to suppliers.

• Other current assets include Rs. 3,50,000 current assets 
receivable in cash and Prepaid expenses of Rs. 50,000.

• Short term provisions include Dividend payable including 
DDT of Rs. 2,00,000. The dividend payable had been as a 
result of board meeting wherein the declaration of dividend 
for financial year 2017-2018 was made. However, it is subject 
to approval of shareholders in the annual general meeting.

Chief Financial Officer of Shaurya Limited has also presented the 
following information against corresponding relevant items in 
the Balance Sheet:
• Property, Plant & Equipment consists a class of assets as 

office buildings whose carrying amount is Rs. 10,00,000. 
However, the fair value of said office building as on the 
date of transition is estimated to be Rs. 5,00,000. Company 
wants to follow revaluation model as its accounting policy 
in respect of its property, plant and equipment for the first 
annual Ind AS financial statements.

• The fair value of Intangible Assets as on the date of transition 
is estimated to be Rs. 2,50,000. However, the management is 
reluctant to incorporate the fair value changes in books of 
account although auditor does not agree to the same.

• Shaurya Ltd. had acquired 80% shares in a company, Excel 
private limited few years ago thereby acquiring the control 
in it at that time.  Shaurya Ltd. recognised goodwill as per 
erstwhile accounting standards by accounting the excess of 
consideration paid over the net assets acquired at the date of 
acquisition. Fair value exercise was not done at the time of 
acquisition. Now auditors insist the company that fair value 
exercise must be done with retrospective effect as on the date 
of transition.

• Trade receivables include an amount of Rs. 20,000 as 
provision for doubtful debts measured in accordance with 
previous GAAP. Now as per latest estimates, the provision 
needs to be revised to Rs. 25,000.

• Six years ago, company had given a loan of Rs. 1,00,000 
to an entity for the term of 10 years. Transaction costs 
were incurred separately for this loan. The loan carries 
an interest rate of 7% p.a. and it was carried at cost in its 
initial recognition.  The principal amount is to be repaid in 
equal instalments over the period of ten years at the year 
end.  Interest is also payable at each year end. The fair value 
of loan as on the date of transition is Rs. 50,000 as against 
the carrying amount of loan which at present amounts Rs. 
40,000.  However, Ind AS 109 mandates to charge the interest 
expense as per effective interest method after the adjustment 
of transaction costs.  Management says it is tedious task in 
the given case to apply the effective interest rate changes with 
retrospective effect and hence is reluctant to apply the same 
retrospectively in its first-time adoption.

• In the long-term borrowings, Rs. 4,50,000 of component is 
due towards the State Government. Interest is payable on the 
government loan at 4% p.a., however the prevailing rate in 
the market at present is 8% p.a.  The fair market value of loan 
stands at Rs. 4,20,000 as on the relevant date.

• Under Previous GAAP, the mutual funds were measured 

at cost or market value, whichever is lower. Under Ind 
AS, the Company has designated these investments at fair 
value through profit or loss.  The value of mutual funds as 
per previous GAAP is Rs. 2,00,000 as included in ‘current 
investments’. However, the fair value of mutual funds as on 
the date of transition is Rs. 2,30,000.

• Ignore separate calculation of deferred tax on above 
adjustments.  Assume the net deferred tax income to be Rs. 
50,000 on account of Ind AS transition adjustments.

During the briefing with internal audit head of Shaurya Limited, 
internal auditor has put an observation that a contractor, M/s 
Ghanshyam & Brothers, has been providing the services to 
Shaurya Limited since the beginning of the year. M/s Ghanshyam 
& Brothers does billing to Shaurya Limited’s corporate office each 
month at Rs. 50,000 (exc. GST). From the invoice particulars, 
it is found that M/s Ghanshyam & Brothers is situated at 203, 
Shastri colony, Ghaziabad, Uttar Pradesh and having PAN no. 
APNFG0000Z. The total invoice amount comes to Rs. 59,000 
incorporating GST @ 18%. Meanwhile, company deducts tax 
deduction at source (TDS) of M/s Ghanshyam & Brothers each 
month amounting to Rs. 500 on the amount of Rs. 50,000 and 
not on Rs. 59,000. Accountant is worried that he should have 
been deducting TDS on Rs. 59,000 as its non-compliance would 
require the company to pay interest on late payment of TDS/
Short deduction.
There is another service provider, Amit Shukla who as a 
professional had assisted the company for Ind AS adjustments. 
Amit Shukla billed Rs. 10,00,000 to the company on 16th January, 
2020. Company booked the said invoice in its books with the 
date as mentioned in invoice and deducted the TDS accordingly. 
However, company has deposited the due TDS amount on 30th 

April, 2020.

QUESTIONS
Part A- Multiple Choice Questions 

1. Appointment of Shaurya Limited’s statutory auditors at 
annual general meeting is not valid since: 
(a) Prior approval of Central Government has not been 

taken.
(b) Prior approval of Comptroller and Auditor General of 

India has not been taken.
(c) Appointment should be valid for 1 year only.
(d) Comptroller and Auditor General of India can only 

appoint the auditors.
2. Calculate the monthly amount of political contribution 

Shaurya Limited can make to political party for the year 
ending 31st March, 2020.
(a) Rs. 10,00,000
(b) Rs. 8,00,000
(c) Nil
(d) No Limit

3. Calculate the amount of TDS to be deducted by Shaurya 
Limited against the monthly invoice of M/s Ghanshyam & 
Brothers.
(a) Rs. 1,180
(b) Rs. 1,000
(c) Rs. 500
(d) Rs. 590

4. Calculate the interest on late payment of TDS Shaurya 
Limited is required to pay and deposit to the account of 
Central Government in the case of Amit Shukla.
(a) Rs. 5,000
(b) Rs. 7,500
(c) Rs. 6,000
(d) Rs. 4,000
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Mr. Tony’s friend, Mr. Raghav stays in Spain since last 5 years. 
Before leaving India, he had investments in India. He came to 
India on 2nd February, 2020 and stayed in India for 75 days.  The 
particulars of his income for P.Y.2019-20 are as follows:

Nature of Income Amount (Rs.)

Interest Income from Indian company on rupee 
denominated bonds issued during December 2018

 10,00,000

Rental Income form property situated in India  20,00,000

Interest payable by a unit located in an IFSC in 
respect of monies borrowed on 1st October, 2019

 5,00,000

Salary from Spain  10,00,000

Interest on money standing to his credit in NRE 
account

 1,00,000

Mr. Arnav, who is cousin of Mr. Raghav is a Person of 
Indian Origin as his father was born in India. Mr. Raghav has 
foreign passport only. He was born in Spain and also stays in 
Spain. During FY 2019-20, Arnav did not visit India. He stays 
in Country X, but is not taxed in Country X also as the number 
of days stay in Country X is less as required to be a resident of 
Country X. During FY 2019-20, he did not come to India. He has 
following income from India:

Sr. No. Nature of income Amount (Rs.)

1 Interest Income from fixed deposits 
with Indian companies 

5,00,000

2. Salary income in Spain 10,00,000
3. Rental Income from Indian Property 20,00,000

M/s Bishon Rainwear has a hospital by the name “Kaifee 
Hospital”. The services provided by hospital are stated as under:

• Providing rooms to patients
• In-house canteen to patients and their relatives
• Calling senior and expert doctors from India’s best 

hospitals.
• Pathology services
During the month of April, 2020, the hospital billed as under:

Sr. 
No.

Nature of services Amount (Rs.)

1 Rent of Rooms 10,00,000
2 In-house canteen to patients 5,00,000
3 Canteen services to relatives of patients 7,00,000
4. Pathology 20,00,000
5. Cost of senior and expert doctors 15,00,000
6. Cost of in-house doctors and nurses 10,00,000

M/s Mcleod approached Kaifee Hospital to display the 
advertising banner of its clients who deals in medicines at a 
price of Rs. 2,00,000 per month. Further, Kaifee hospital is also 
proposing to get independent physiotherapist on board to serve 
its patients. The physiotherapist shall charge a monthly fee of Rs. 
1,50,000.

QUESTIONS

5. The place of supply and tax leviable in case of services 
provided by M/s Ghanshyam & Brothers to Shaurya 
Limited is-
(a) Delhi, CGST & SGST
(b) Delhi, IGST
(c) Uttar Pradesh, CGST & SGST
(d) Uttar Pradesh, IGST

Part B- Descriptive Questions
6. - Provide summary introduction in short of the relevant 

Ind AS, which is required for preparation of Shaurya 
Limited’s opening Balance Sheet as on the date of 
transition.       

 - Prepare transition date Balance Sheet of Shaurya 
Limited as per Indian Accounting Standards, 
according to the format prescribed in Division II - Ind 
AS Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013.       

 - Show necessary explanation for each of the items 
presented by chief financial officer in the form of 
notes, which may or may not require the adjustment as 
on the date of transition.

CASE STUDY 2

M/s Bishon Rainwear has bought a new office premises at 
Bandra Kurla Complex. He made the furniture for the office 
through an architect. Following are the bills which M/s Bishon 
Rainwear has paid for the furniture made at the new office in 
the month of April, 2020:

Nature of bills Amount (in Rs.) GST Amount

Purchase of spare parts  2,50,000 Rs. 45,000

Purchase of accessories  10,00,000 Rs. 1,80,000

Purchase of wood for 
furniture, tiles 

 15,00,000 Rs. 2,70,000

In the month of May, 2020, the amount of input tax credit as 
per GST portal is Rs. 23,539 (CGST) and Rs. 23,539 (SGST). The 
total input tax credit claimed as per the accounting software of M/s 
Bishon Rainwear is Rs. 25,164 (CGST) and 25,164 (SGST). The credit 
(Rs. 1,624-inclusive of CGST AND SGST) pertaining to supplier by 
the name “Shah Zipper” is not reflected in the GST portal. 

M/s Bishon Rainwear has capitalised the above furniture 
costs in his books of accounts. 

M/s Bishon Rainwear has an employee Mr. Tony who left his 
job in the month of April, 2020 and left India for good. He shifted 
to France. He has invested in the shares of listed companies. 
During the FY 2020-2021, he earned dividend of Rs. 10,00,000 
from the investment in the listed shares of Indian companies.  

M/s Bishon Rainwear has started a start up by the name 
“Franky Cranky Ltd.” in the year 2018. It is an eligible start-up 
as per section 80-IAC. During the financial year 2018-19, it 
incurred a loss of Rs. 100 crores. During FY 2019-20, it incurred 
a loss of Rs. 50 crore.

M/s Bishon Rainwear projects the profits/loss from the 
start–up as under:

FY FY 2020-
2021

FY 
2021-
2022

FY 
2022-
2023

FY 
2023-
2024

FY 
2024-
2025

FY 
2025-
2026

FY 
2026-
2027

FY 
2027-
2028

FY 
2028-
2029

FY 
2029-
2030

Amount of profit 
or (loss)

50 crore 150 
crore

200 
crore

400 
crore

800 
crore

100 
crore

100 
crore

200 
crore

250 
crore

50 crore
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QUESTIONS
Part A- Multiple Choice Questions  
1. What is the amount of ITC that can be taken by M/s 

Bishon Rainwear for the month of April, 2020?
(a) Rs. 45,000
(b) Rs. 4,95,000
(c) Rs. 1,80,000
(d) 0

2. State which year’s profit should be taken into consideration 
for maximising the utilisation of deduction available under 
the Act.
(a) FY 2022-23 to FY 2024-25
(b) FY 2020-21 to FY 2022-23
(c) FY 2025-26 to FY 2027-28
(d) FY 2027-28 to FY 2029-30

3.  What is the residential status of Mr. Raghav for A.Y.2020-
21?
(a) Resident but not ordinarily resident
(b) Resident and ordinary resident
(c) Non resident
(d) None of the above

4.  What is the value of service provided by Kaifee Hospital 
which is chargeable to GST?
(a) Rs. 67,00,000
(b) Rs. 45,00,000
(c) Rs. 7,00,000
(d) Rs. 22,00,000

5.  What is the value of supply chargeable to GST in respect 
of advertising banner and putting physiotherapist on 
board for one month?
(a) Rs. 3,50,000
(b) Rs. 2,00,000
(c) Rs. 1,50,000
(d) Nil

Part B- Descriptive Questions
6. What is the amount of input tax credit that can be taken 

for the month of May, 2020 by M/s Bishon Rainwear?

7. What is the income chargeable to tax in the hands of Mr. 
Raghav during FY 2019-20 as per Income-tax Act, 1961?

8. What is the income chargeable to tax in the hands of Mr. 
Arnav as per Income-tax Act, 1961?

ANSWERS
CASE STUDY 1

Part A
1. (d) Comptroller and Auditor General of India can only 

appoint the auditors.
 Reason: In case of subsequent auditor for existing 

government companies, the Comptroller & Auditor 
General shall appoint the auditor within a period of 180 
days from the commencement of the financial year and 
the auditor so appointed shall hold his position till the 
conclusion of the Annual General Meeting. [Reference- 
section 139(5)]

 Note: Shaurya Limited is a Government company.

2. (c) Nil
 Reason: Section 2(45) of Companies Act,2013 states, 

“Government company” means any company in which 
not less than fifty-one per cent of the paid-up share 
capital is held by the Central Government, or by any State 
Government or Governments, or partly by the Central 
Government and partly by one or more State Governments, 
and includes a company which is a subsidiary company of 
such a Government company.

 Accordingly, Shaurya Limited is a Government company.
 Section 182 of Companies Act,2013 states, notwithstanding 

anything contained in any other provision of this Act, 
a company, other than a Government company and a 
company which has been in existence for less than three 
financial years, may contribute any amount directly or 
indirectly to any political party.

 Hence as per section 182, a government company is 
prohibited to make any political contribution.

3. (b) Rs. 1,000
 Reason:
  TDS is required to be deducted on the amount 

excluding GST i.e. on Rs. 50,000
  The fourth character of PAN represents the status of the 

PAN holder; PAN in case of M/s Ghanshyam & Brothers 
is APNFG0000Z. It implies that status of M/s Ghanshyam 
& Brothers as per Income-tax Act is of ‘Firm’.

 However, the TDS has been deducted by considering M/s 
Ghanshyam & Brothers as an Individual (Rs. 500) which is 
wrong as per section 194C of Income-tax Act.

 194C states that following amount of TDS is to be 
deducted:

 - one per cent where the payment is being made or credit 
is being given to an individual or a Hindu undivided 
family;

 - two per cent where the payment is being made or credit 
is being given to a person other than an individual or a 
Hindu undivided family (Rs. 1,000 in this case).

4. (c) Rs. 6,000
 Reason: Under Section 201(1A) for late deposit of TDS 

after deduction, you have to pay interest. Interest is at 
the rate of 1.5% per month from the date at which TDS 
was deducted to the actual date of deposit. Interest is to 
be calculated on a monthly basis and not based on the 
number of days i.e. part of a month is considered as a full 
month.

 Interest on late payment of TDS
 = Rs. 10,00,000 x 10% (194J) x 1.5% x 4 months
 = Rs. 6,000 

5. (b) Delhi, IGST
 Reason: If the supply is intra-state supply, tax shall be paid 

as CGST+SGST and if the Supply is inter-state supply, tax 
shall be paid as IGST.

 Place of supply of services is the location of the service 
recipient (Delhi in this case). Since supplier M/s 
Ghanshyam & Brothers is located in the state of Uttar 
Pradesh, thus IGST should have been levied.

Part B
6. Ind AS 101 prescribes the accounting principles for first-

time adoption of Ind AS. It lays down various ‘transition’ 
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requirements when a company adopts Ind AS for the first 
time, i.e., a move from Accounting Standards (Indian 
GAAP) to Ind AS. Conceptually, the accounting under 
Ind AS should be applied retrospectively at the time of 
transition to Ind AS. However, to ease the process of 
transition, Ind AS 101 has given certain exemptions from 
retrospective application of Ind AS.

 An entity shall prepare and present an opening Ind AS 
Balance Sheet at the date of transition to Ind AS. This is 
also called transition date Balance Sheet. This is the starting 
point for its accounting in accordance with Ind AS.

 An entity shall use the same accounting policies in its 
opening Ind AS Balance Sheet and throughout all periods 
presented in its first Ind AS financial statements. Those 
accounting policies shall comply with each Ind AS 
effective at the end of its first Ind AS reporting period, 
except as specified in Ind AS 101.

 An entity shall, in its opening Ind AS Balance Sheet:
 - recognise all assets and liabilities whose recognition is 

required by Ind ASs;
 - not recognise items as assets or liabilities if Ind ASs do 

not permit such recognition;
 - reclassify items that it recognised in accordance 

with previous GAAP as one type of  asset, liability or 
component of equity, but are a different type of asset, 
liability or component of equity in accordance with 
Ind AS; and

 - apply Ind AS in measuring all recognised assets and 
liabilities.

 The accounting policies in the transition date (opening) 
Ind AS Balance Sheet may differ from those that it used 
for the same date using previous GAAP.  The resulting 
adjustments arise from events and transactions before 
the date of transition to Ind AS, which shall be recognised 
directly in retained earnings (or, if appropriate, another 
category of equity) at the date of transition to Ind AS.

 This Ind AS establishes two categories of exceptions to the 
principle that an entity’s opening Ind AS Balance Sheet 
shall comply with each Ind AS:

 - Ind AS 101 prohibits retrospective application of some 
specific aspects of other Ind AS.

 - Ind AS 101 grants voluntary exemptions from some 
specific requirements of other Ind AS.

 Accordingly, the transition date (opening) Ind AS Balance 
Sheet of Shaurya Limited on the basis of above lines would 
be prepared as under:

IND-AS BALANCE SHEET
As at 1st April, 2018
(All figures are in ’000, unless otherwise specified)

Particulars Previous 
GAAP

 (Rs.)

Transitional 
Ind AS 

adjustments
(Rs.)

Opening 
Ind AS 

Balance 
Sheet (Rs.)

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and 
Equipment (Note-1)

20,00,000 5,00,000 25,00,000

Goodwill (Note-2) 1,00,000 - 1,00,000
Other Intangible Assets 
(Note-3)

2,00,000 - 2,00,000

Financial assets:
Investment 5,00,000 - 5,00,000

OTHER EQUITY

Particulars Retained 
Earnings (Rs.)

Fair value 
reserve 

(Rs.)

Total 
(Rs.)

As at 31st 

March, 2018
27,90,000 (W.N.1) 5,00,000 32,90,000

Working Note 1:

Retained earnings balance: Amount 
(Rs.)

Balance as per Earlier GAAP 25,00,000
Transitional adjustment due to loan’s fair value 10,000
Transitional adjustment due to increase in 
mutual fund’s fair value

30,000

Transitional adjustment due to decrease in 
deferred tax liability

50,000

Transitional adjustment due to decrease in 
provisions (dividend)

  2,00,000

Total 27,90,000

Particulars Previous 
GAAP

 (Rs.)

Transitional 
Ind AS 

adjustments
(Rs.)

Opening 
Ind AS 

Balance 
Sheet (Rs.)

Loans (Note-4) 40,000 10,000 50,000
Other financial assets 1,10,000 - 1,10,000

Other non-current assets 2,00,000 - 2,00,000
Current Assets
Inventories 12,50,000   - 12,50,000   
Financial assets

Investments  (Note-5) 18,00,000 30,000 18,30,000
Trade receivables 
(Note-6) 9,00,000 - 9,00,000
Cash and cash 
equivalents/ Bank

10,00,000 - 10,00,000

Other financial assets 3,50,000 - 3,50,000
Other current assets      50,000             -     50,000
TOTAL ASSETS 85,00,000 5,40,000 90,40,000

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 10,00,000 - 10,00,000
Other equity 25,00,000 7,90,000 32,90,000
Non-Current 
Liabilities
Financial liabilities

Borrowings (Note-7) 4,50,000 - 4,50,000
Provisions 3,50,000 - 3,50,000
Deferred tax liabilities 
(Net)

3,50,000 (50,000) 3,00,000

Current Liabilities
Financial liabilities
Trade payables 22,00,000 - 22,00,000
Other financial liabilities 3,90,000 - 3,90,000
Other current liabilities 60,000 - 60,000
Provisions (Note-8) 12,00,000 (2,00,000) 10,00,000
TOTAL EQUITY AND 
LIABILITIES

85,00,000    5,40,000 90,40,000
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Disclosure forming part of financial statements:
Proposed dividend on equity shares is subject to the approval of 
the shareholders of the company at the annual general meeting 
and should not be recognized as liability as at the Balance Sheet 
date.

Note 1: Property, Plant & Equipment:
As per para D5 of Ind AS 101, an entity may elect to measure an 
item of property, plant and equipment at the date of transition to 
Ind ASs at its fair value and use that fair value as its deemed cost 
at that date.

Note 2: Goodwill:
Ind AS 103 mandatorily requires measuring the assets and 
liabilities of the acquiree at its fair value as on the date of 
acquisition.  However, a first-time adopter may elect to not 
apply the provisions of Ind AS 103 with retrospective effect that 
occurred prior to the date of transition to Ind AS.
Hence, company can continue to carry the goodwill in its books 
of account as per the previous GAAP.

Note 3: Intangible Assets:
Para D7 read with D6 of Ind AS 101 states that a first-time 
adopter may elect to use a previous GAAP revaluation at, or 
before, the date of transition to Ind ASs as deemed cost at the 
date of the revaluation, if the revaluation was, at the date of the 
revaluation, broadly comparable to:
(a) Fair value; or
(b) Cost or depreciated cost in accordance with Ind ASs, 

adjusted to reflect, for example, changes in a general or 
specific price index.

However, there is a requirement that Intangible assets must meet 
the definition and recognition criteria as per Ind AS 38.
Hence, company can avail the exemption given in Ind AS 101 as 
on the date of transition to use the carrying value as per previous 
GAAP. 

Note 4: Loan:
Para B8C of Ind AS 101 states that if it is impracticable (as 
defined in Ind AS 8) for an entity to apply retrospectively the 
effective interest method in Ind AS 109, the fair value of the 
financial asset or the financial liability at the date of transition to 
Ind ASs shall be the new gross carrying amount of that financial 
asset or the new amortised cost of that financial liability at the 
date of transition to Ind ASs.
Accordingly, Rs. 50,000 would be the gross carrying amount of 
loan and difference of 
Rs. 10,000 (Rs. 50,000 – Rs. 40,000) would be adjusted to retained 
earnings.

Note 5: Mutual Funds:
Para 29 of Ind AS 101 states that an entity is permitted to 
designate a previously recognised financial asset as a financial 
asset measured at fair value through profit or loss in accordance 
with paragraph D19A. The entity shall disclose the fair value 
of financial assets so designated at the date of designation and 
their classification and carrying amount in the previous financial 
statements.

D19 states that an entity may designate a financial asset as 
measured at fair value through profit or loss in accordance with 
Ind AS 109 on the basis of the facts and circumstances that exist 
at the date of transition to Ind ASs.

Note 6: Trade receivables:
Para 14 of Ind AS 101 states that an entity’s estimates in 
accordance with Ind ASs at the date of transition to Ind ASs 
shall be consistent with estimates made for the same date in 
accordance with previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect 
any difference in accounting policies), unless there is objective 
evidence that those estimates were in error.

Para 15 of Ind AS 101 further states, an entity may receive 
information after the date of transition to Ind ASs about 
estimates that it had made under previous GAAP. In accordance 
with paragraph 14, an entity shall treat the receipt of that 
information in the same way as non-adjusting events after the 
reporting period in accordance with Ind AS 10, Events after the 
Reporting Period.

The entity shall not reflect that new information in its 
opening Ind AS Balance Sheet (unless the estimates need 
adjustment for any differences in accounting policies or there 
is objective evidence that the estimates were in error). Instead, 
the entity shall reflect that new information in profit or loss (or, 
if appropriate, other comprehensive income) for the year ended 
31st March, 2019.

Note 7: Government Grant:
Para 10A of Ind AS 20 states that the benefit of a government 
loan at a below-market rate of interest is treated as a government 
grant. The loan shall be recognised and measured in accordance 
with Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments. The benefit of the 
below-market rate of interest shall be measured as the difference 
between the initial carrying value of the loan determined in 
accordance with Ind AS 109, and the proceeds received. The 
benefit is accounted for in accordance with this Standard.

However, Para B10 of Ind AS 101 states, a first-time adopter 
shall classify all government loans received as a financial liability 
or an equity instrument in accordance with Ind AS 32, Financial 
Instruments: Presentation.  Except as permitted by paragraph 
B11, a first-time adopter shall apply the requirements in Ind 
AS 109, Financial Instruments, and Ind AS 20, Accounting for 
Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance, 
prospectively to government loans existing at the date of 
transition to Ind ASs and shall not recognise the corresponding 
benefit of the government loan at a below-market rate of interest 
as a government grant. Consequently, if a first-time adopter 
did not, under its previous GAAP, recognise and measure a 
government loan at a below-market rate of interest on a basis 
consistent with Ind AS requirements, it shall use its previous 
GAAP carrying amount of the loan at the date of transition 
to Ind ASs as the carrying amount of the loan in the opening 
Ind AS Balance Sheet. An entity shall apply Ind AS 109 to the 
measurement of such loans after the date of transition to Ind ASs.

Note 8: Dividend
Since dividend should be deducted from retained earnings during 
the year when it has been declared and approved. Accordingly, 
the provision declared for preceding year should be reversed 
(to rectify the wrong entry). Retained earnings would increase 
proportionately due to such adjustment.
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CASE STUDY 2

Part A
1. (d) 0
 Reason: As per clause d of section 17(5) of CGST Act, 

input tax credit(ITC) is not allowed on  goods and or 
services received by a taxable person for construction of an 
immovable property (other than plant and machinery) on 
his own account even though such goods and or services 
are used in course of furtherance of business. Thus, no input 
tax credit shall be available. Since the cost of furniture is 
capitalised, ITC will not be available.

2. (a) FY 2022-23 to FY 2024-25
 Reason: As per Section 80IAC of Income-tax Act, 1961, the 

deduction under the said section 80-IAC shall be available 
to an eligible start-up for a period of three consecutive 
assessment years out of seven years beginning from the year 
in which it is incorporated.

 It is best to select the profits for FY 2022-23 to FY 
2024-25 as in the earlier years, the profits are getting reduced 
due to brought forward losses of earlier years.

3.  (c) Non resident
 Reason: Since he has stayed in India only for 59 days during 

P.Y.2019-20, he is non-resident in India for A.Y.2020-21.

4.  (c) Rs. 7,00,000
 Reason: Rent of rooms provided to in-patients in hospitals is 

exempt [Circular No. 27/01/2018 GST dated 04.01.2018].
It is clarified by CBIC that services provided by such 

senior doctors/ consultants/ technicians, whether employees 
or not, are healthcare services which are exempt from GST 
[Circular No. 32/06/2018 GST dated 12.02.2018].

Health care services provided by the clinical establishments 
will include food supplied to the patients; but such food may 
be prepared by the canteens run by the hospitals or may be 
outsourced by the hospitals from outdoor caterers.

Food supplied to the in-patients as advised by the doctor/ 
nutritionists is a part of composite supply of healthcare and 
not separately taxable.

Other supplies of food by a hospital to patients (not 
admitted) or their attendants or visitors are taxable [Circular 
No. 32/06/2018 GST dated 12.02.2018] 

 Thus, apart from canteen services to relatives of patients, all 
the other services provided by Kaifee Hospital are exempt 
from GST.  

5.  (b) Rs. 2,00,000
 Reason: Supply of services other than healthcare services 

such as renting of shops, auditoriums in the premises of the 
clinical establishment, display of advertisements etc. will be 
subject to GST.

Paramedics are trained health care professionals, 
for example, nursing staff, physiotherapists, technicians, 
lab assistants etc. Services provided by them in a clinical 
establishment would be in the capacity of employee and not 
provided in independent capacity and will thus be considered 
as services by such clinical establishment. Similar services in 
independent capacity are also exempted.

Thus, only consideration received from advertising of Rs. 
2,00,000 shall be chargeable to GST.

Part B
6. In order to claim the input tax credit, following steps may 

be considered: a) Download total credits appearing in GSTR 
2A up to date; b) Exclude (1) credits already taken up to 
previous month’s GSTR 3B; c) Exclude (2) ‘ineligible credits’ 
to arrive at ‘total available credits’ for the month; d) Exclude 
(3) ‘available but deferred’ credits, that is, where other 
conditions of Section 16(2) are not yet satisfied; e) Now, 
remaining balance will be ‘eligible credits for the month’; 
and f ) Identify total credits as per books and avail this in 
GSTR 3B so much that does not exceed 10 percent of above 
and include in GSTR 3B for the month. Credits appearing 
in GSTR 2A only means that Suppliers have uploaded tax 
invoice in GSTR 1 but the other conditions in Section 16(2) 
still need to be satisfied before credit can be availed by the 
Recipient.  The taxpayer will be provisionally eligible to avail 
credit in respect of ‘unmatched’ 10 per cent which must be 
re-examined next month so that unmatched do not remain 
unmatched forever. 

Applying the above steps, input tax credit to be taken for 
the month of May, 2020 is calculated as under: 

Calculation for the month of May CGST SGST

total credit as per accounting software 25,164 25,164
Less: Credit pertaining to Shah Zipper for 
the month of May

1,624 1,624

Balance[A]  23,540 23,540
Credit upto 10%[B] 2,354 2,354
Net credit can be taken[A+B] 25,894 25,894
Since this is in excess of total credit of 
Rs. 25,164, full credit of Rs. 25, 164 will 
be taken

  

 Thus, the net credit that can be taken for the month of 
May, 2020 is Rs. 25,164 [CGST] plus Rs. 25,164 [SGST].

7. Mr. Raghav is a non-resident since he has stayed in India 
only for 59 days during the P.Y.2019-20.

 Thus, the taxability of the income for FY 2019-20 is 
computed as under:

Nature of Income Amount 
in Rs.

Taxability

Interest Income from 
Indian company on rupee 
denominated bonds issued 
during December, 2018

10,00,000 Exempt u/s 
10(4C)

Rental Income form property 
situated in India

 20,00,000 Taxable as per 
slab rate

Interest payable by a unit 
located in an IFSC in respect 
of monies borrowed on 1st 
October, 2019

 5,00,000  Exempt u/s 
10(15)(ix)

Salary from Spain 10,00,000 Not Taxable in the 
hands of a non-

resident, since it 
is from a source 

outside India
Interest on money standing to 
his credit in NRE A/c

1,00,000 Not taxable as per 
section 10(4)(ii)
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Thus, the taxable income is computed as under:

Income from House Property Amount 
in Rs.

Amount in Rs.

Annual Value 20,00,000

Less: Deduction u/s 24(a) 6,00,000  

Net Income from House 
Property

 14,00,000

Income from Other Sources   

Interest on money standing to 
his credit in NRE A/c

Exempt  

Interest payable by a unit 
located in an IFSC in respect 
of monies borrowed on 1st 
October, 2019

Exempt  

Interest Income from 
Indian company on rupee 
denominated bonds issued 
during December, 2019

Exempt -

Gross Total Income  14,00,000

8. Arnav is a non-resident since he has not visited India 
during the P.Y.2019-20.

 Thus, the items of income chargeable to tax as per Income-
tax Act, 1961 is as under:

Sr. 
No.

Nature of income Rs

1 Indian Interest Income 5,00,000
2 Rental Income from Indian Property 20,00,000

 Computation of income is as under:

Particulars Amount 
(Rs.)

Amount 
(Rs.)

Income from House Property 20,00,000  
Less: 30% Standard Deduction 6,00,000  
Net Income from House Property  14,00,000
Income from Other Sources   
Indian Interest Income  5,00,000
Gross Total Income  1,90,0000

 Note – Salary income in Spain is not chargeable to tax in 
India, since it accrues and arises outside India and is also 
received outside India.
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